
 

 

AGENDA 

 

 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT/HOUSING/GENERAL GOVERNMENT 

COMMITTEE 

 

4:30 p.m., Tuesday, September 13, 2016 

 

COMMITTEE ROOM 

 

Room 239, City Hall 

__________________________________________ 

 

 COMMITTEE MEMBERS: Council Member Molly Leight, Chair 

     Council Member Jeff MacIntosh, Vice Chair 

     Council Member Denise D. Adams 

     Council Member Dan Besse 

 

 

GENERAL AGENDA 

 

G-1. PRESENTATION BY JOBS FOR THE FUTURE. 

 

G-2. BUILDING INTEGRATED COMMUNITIES-CITYWIDE ACTION PLAN. 

 

G-3. REPORT ON COMPASSIONATE CITIES. 

 

G-4. HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION ANNUAL REPORT 

 

G-5. INFORMATION ON TURN DEMONSTRATION HOMES CONCEPT 

 



AGENDA September 13, 2016 Page 2 

 

 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

C-1. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION OF A DISPLAY 

RECOGNIZING CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM GOVERNMENT WOMEN 

LEADERS, AND INSTALLATION OF THE PORTRAIT OF MAYOR ALLEN 

JOINES. 

 

C-2. RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL, ACTING IN ITS REDEVELOPMENT 

CAPACITY, TO MODIFY THE BROOKWOOD REDEVELOPMENT PLAN. Public 

Hearing: September 19, 2016. 

 

C-3. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A LAND LEASE AT KIMBERLEY PARK TO 

GOLER COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION TO DEVELOP A 

HYDROPONICS/ AQUAPONICS JOB TRAINING FACILITY. 

 

C-4. PROPOSED DEMOLITION OF 305 FOREST HILL AVENUE (OWNERS LISTED 

AS DOUGLAS AND JOY WILSON). [Item continued from the August meeting of the 

Community Development/Housing/General Government Committee.] 

 

C-5. RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE EXPANSION OF THE PIEDMONT TRIAD 

INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT. 

 

C-6. ORDINANCE DESIGNATING CERTAIN PROPERTY AS A  HISTORIC 

LANDMARK - John L. And Emma J. Gilmer House, 605 West Cascade Avenue, 

Winston-Salem and a Portion of an Unopened Alley. Public Hearing October 17, 2016. 

 

C-7. APPROVAL OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT/HOUSING/GENERAL 

GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE SUMARY OF MINUTES - August 9, 2016. 

 



 

 

 

 

TO: Mayor Allen Joines and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Derwick L. Paige, Assistant City Manager 

DATE: August 9, 2016 

SUBJECT: Presentation by Jobs for the Future 

CC:  

 

 

In February 2016, City Council authorized entering into a contract with the National 

Resource Network to conduct a study of our current labor market to provide insight in 

helping to develop long-term strategies for some of our challenged residents. The study 

has been completed and Ms. Lucretia Murphy and Ms. Sara Lamback from Jobs for the 

Future will present their findings to the Community Development/Housing/General 

Government Committee. 

 

 
_________________________ 

Derwick L. Paige 

 

 

-1-

G-1.      DRAFT



 

-2-



PATHWAYS TO ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY

Sara Lamback and Myriam Sullivan
Jobs for the Future | September 13, 2016

JFF PRESENTATION OF FINDINGS TO 

WINSTON-SALEM CITY COUNCIL

-3-

G
-1.      D

R
A

FT



AGENDA

> Key Demographic Trends

> Target Sector Discussion: 

– Manufacturing 

– Healthcare

> Recommendations and Discussion

> Closing and Next Steps

-4-

G
-1.      D

R
A

FT



ABOUT THE DATA

> Report draws on multiple data sources and a mixed method 
approach for analysis to determine demand for middle-skills 
occupations and high-demand industries:

– Real-time labor analysis provided by Burning Glass 
Technologies 

> Sector Analysis data provided at the county level while 
poverty, unemployment, and employment data are provided at 
the city level.

-5-

G
-1.      D

R
A

FT



LEVELS OF EDUCATION ATTAINMENT

85%

88%

91%

87%

88%

33%

36%

48%

47%

41%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Winston-Salem

Greensboro

Raleigh

Durham

Charlotte

Education Attainment, Population 25 Years and Older, 
Select North Carolina Cities 

BA or Higher High School Graduate or Higher

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2010-2014 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates

-6-

G
-1.      D

R
A

FT



POVERTY BY RACE/ETHNICITY

8%

17%

9%

8%

15%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

20%

White Black or African
American

American Indian and
Alaska Native

Asian Hispanic or Latino
origin (of any race)

Poverty Level by Race / Ethnicity, Winston Salem City

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2010-2014 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates

-7-

G
-1.      D

R
A

FT



EMPLOYMENT BY INDUSTRY, FORSYTH 

COUNTY

Description
2016 

Jobs

2013 - 2016 

% Change

2015 

Establishment

s

2016 

Location 

Quotient

Real Time 

Job Ads 

(2015)

Health Care and Social Assistance 34,827 6% 834 1.42 6,941

Government 20,837 (2%) 169 0.67 722

Retail Trade 20,522 2% 1,326 1.01 2,968

Manufacturing 16,859 9% 346 1.07 1,818

Accommodation and Food Services 15,796 2% 768 0.93 1,057

Administrative and Support and 

Waste Management and 

Remediation Services

14,518 11% 626 1.26 1,022

Educational Services 10,695 0% 114 2.24 572

Finance and Insurance 9,162 3% 616 1.21 2,414

Other Services (except Public 

Administration)
8,584 4% 932 1.15 325

Source: EMSI & Burning Glass Technologies

-8-

G
-1.      D

R
A

FT



MANUFACTURING WORKFORCE 

DEMOGRAPHICS

Source: EMSI

Gender 2016 Jobs 2016 Percent

Males 12,252 72.7%

Females 4,606 27.3%

Age 2016 Jobs 2016 Percent

14-18 66 0.4%

19-24 719 4.3%

25-34 2,587 15.3%

35-44 4,079 24.2%

45-54 5,219 31.0%

55-64 3,527 20.9%

65+ 662 3.9%

Race/Ethnicity 2016 Jobs 2016 Percent

White 12,275 72.8%

Black or African 
American

2,870 17.0%

Hispanic or Latino 1,154 6.8%

Asian 469 2.8%

Two or More 
Races

45 0.3%

American Indian 
or Alaska Native

38 0.2%

Native Hawaiian 
or Other Pacific 
Islander

8 0.0%

Business Name Industry Name Business Size

Hanesbrands Inc.
Broadwoven Fabric Mills 
(313210)

Large (250+)

Champion Athleticwear Inc.
All Other Miscellaneous 
Manufacturing (339999)

Large (250+)

B/e Aerospace
Other Aircraft Parts and 
Auxiliary Equipment 
Manufacturing (336413)

Large (250+)

Deere-Hitachi Constr 
Machry

Construction Machinery 
Manufacturing (333120)

Large (250+)

B/e Aerospace
Other Aircraft Parts and 
Auxiliary Equipment 
Manufacturing (336413)

Large (250+)

> Opportunity to diversify the 
manufacturing workforce:
— 73 percent male
— 25 percent over of 55 years old
— 73 percent white

-9-

G
-1.      D

R
A

FT



FUTURE MANUFACTURING DEMAND

Source: EMSI

> Although manufacturing overall is projected to decline by 9 percent or 1,600 
jobs – certain subsectors are predicting significant growth. Machinery, 
transportation equipment and metal manufacturing are projected to add 
more than 700 new and replacement jobs combined.

9%

14%

16%

18%

18%

29%

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35%

Petroleum and Coal Products Manufacturing

Furniture and Related Product Manufacturing

Transportation Equipment Manufacturing

Machinery Manufacturing

Nonmetallic Mineral Product Manufacturing

Primary Metal Manufacturing

Future Growth, Forsyth County, 
2016-2021 Percent Change

-10-

G
-1.      D

R
A

FT



HIGH-DEMAND MANUFACTURING SKILLS

Production/Adv 
Manufacturing

• Programmable 
Logic Controller 
Programming 
(PLC)

• Computer Aided 
Drafting (CAD)

• Design for 
Manufacture/De
sign for 
Assembly 
(DFM/DFA)

Process 
Improvement

• Good 
Manufacturing 
Practices 
(GMP)

• Six Sigma
• Current Good 

Manufacturing 
Practices 
(CGMP)

Logistics

• SAP
• Scheduling
• Inspection

Employability

• Communication
• Team Work / 

Collaboration
• Physical 

demand
• Work area 

maintenance

> The list below show skills more commonly requested by manufacturing 
employers in Forsyth County. Employers are seeking workers that possess 
a combination of high tech and general employability skills.

Source: Labor Insight Jobs (Burning Glass Technologies)

-11-

G
-1.      D

R
A

FT



Production

CNC Programmer

Production Supervisor

Machinist

CNC Machine Operator 
Machine Operator

Production Technician

Fabricator/Assembler

Maintenance 
Installation & Repair 

Mechanical Engineer

Mechanical Technician

Frontline Supervisor 
Maintenance & Repair

Maintenance, Repair, 
Installation Mechanic

Maintenance Repair 
Worker

Engineering

Project Engineering

Electrical Engineer

Electrical Technician

Computer Hardware 
Engineer

Industrial Machinery 
Mechanic

Electrical Equipment 
Assembler

PRIMARY MANUFACTURING PATHWAYS

-12-

G
-1.      D

R
A

FT



HEALTHCARE WORKFORCE 

DEMOGRAPHICS

Age 2016 Jobs 2016 Percent

14-18 69 0.2%

19-24 2,267 6.5%

25-34 7,999 23.0%

35-44 8,645 24.8%

45-54 8,491 24.4%

55-64 6,028 17.3%

65+ 1,329 3.8%

Gender 2016 Jobs 2016 Percent

Males 7,334 21.1%

Females 27,494 78.9%

Race/Ethnicity 2016 Jobs 2016 Percent

White 23,672 68.0%

Black or African 
American

9,216 26.5%

Hispanic or Latino 953 2.7%

Asian 683 2.0%

Two or More 
Races

191 0.5%

American Indian 
or Alaska Native

94 0.3%

Native Hawaiian 
or Other Pacific 
Islander

18 0.1%

Business Name Industry Name Business Size

Comprehensive Cancer Ctr

Specialty (except 
Psychiatric and 
Substance Abuse) 
Hospitals (622310)

Large (250+)

Wake Forest Baptist Health
General Medical and 
Surgical Hospitals 
(622110)

Large (250+)

Piedmont Triad Research Park
Medical Laboratories 
(621511)

Large (250+)

Wake Forest Baptist Health
All Other Miscellaneous 
Ambulatory Health Care 
Services (621999)

Large (250+)

Kate B Reynolds Hospice Home
Nursing Care Facilities 
(Skilled Nursing 
Facilities) (623110)

Large (250+)

Source: EMSI

> Opportunity to diversify the healthcare 
workforce:
— 79 percent female
— 21 percent over of 55 years old

-13-

G
-1.      D

R
A

FT



PROJECTED GROWTH IN HEALTHCARE 

16%

16%

15%

14%

13%

11%

10%

0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10% 12% 14% 16% 18%

Continuing Care Retirement Communities and Assisted
Living Facilities for the Elderly

Child Day Care Services

Medical and Diagnostic Laboratories

Community Food and Housing, and Emergency and
Other Relief Services

Vocational Rehabilitation Services

Outpatient Care Centers

General Medical and Surgical Hospitals

Future Healthcare Growth, Forsyth County, 2016-2021 
Growth

Source: EMSI

-14-

G
-1.      D

R
A

FT



HIGH-DEMAND HEALTHCARE SKILLS

Patient Care

• Cardiopulmonary 
Resuscitation (CPR) 

• Life Support
• Advanced Cardiac Life 

Support (ACLS)
• Patient Advocacy
• Treatment Planning

Employability

• Communication
• Writing
• Planning
• Collaboration
• Customer Service
• Scheduling

Software/

Programming

• Microsoft Office
• ICD-9-CM Coding
• PeopleSoft
• SQL

> The list below show skills more commonly requested by healthcare 
employers in Forsyth County. Employers are seeking workers that possess 
a combination of patient care, employability, and software skills.

Source: Labor Insight Jobs (Burning Glass Technologies)

-15-

G
-1.      D

R
A

FT



Nursing

Nurse Practitioner

Registered Nurse

Licensed Practical and 
Vocational Nurses

Nursing Assistant

Home Health Aide

Patient Care

Dietician

Rehabilitation/Vocat. 
Specialist

Dental Hygienist

Dental Assistant

Medical Assistant

Occupational Therapy 
Aide

Non-Patient Care

Medical and Clinical 
Laboratory Technologists

Medial and Clinical 
Laboratory Technicians

Medical Sonographer

Medical Records and 
Health Information 

Technicians

Medical Secretaries

HEALTH CARE CAREER PATHWAY 

-16-

G
-1.      D

R
A

FT



KEY OBSERVATIONS

> There are employment opportunities in Winston-Salem’s healthcare and manufacturing 

sectors. 

– 190,042 jobs in Forsyth County.  Healthcare roles accounts for 19 percent of all 

workers while manufacturing accounts for 9 percent. 

– In 2015, employers posted 25,243 job ads for opportunities in Forsyth County. 32 

percent of all job postings were for healthcare roles and and 8 percent for 

manufacturing roles. 

– The average annual wage for manufacturing was $64,725 and $50,056 for healthcare 

roles in 2015. Both sectors provide an opportunity for workers to earn a living wage.

> Healthcare, in particular, is growing and offers key opportunities. 

– The healthcare industry is projected to grow by 6 percent by 2021.

– In nursing, the largest and fastest growing health care occupation, 65 percent of job 

ads requested a bachelor’s degree while 57 percent of the workforce holds a Bachelor 

of Science in Nursing (BSN). It is important to note the significant upskilling of nursing 

roles.

– The healthcare sector also has significant demand for technical non-patient care roles 

such as medical assistants and medical and clinical laboratory technologists.

-17-

G
-1.      D

R
A

FT



KEY OBSERVATIONS (CONTINUED) 

> New manufacturing opportunities are also emerging

– Although manufacturing overall is projected to decline by 9 percent or 
1,600 jobs – certain subsectors are predicting significant growth.  
Machinery, transportation equipment and metal manufacturing are 
projected to add more than 700 new and replacement jobs combined.

– The fastest growing manufacturing occupations has been for machinists, 
team assemblers and welders. 

-18-

G
-1.      D

R
A

FT



RECOMMENDATIONS

The Winston-Salem community faces a critical challenge in connecting lower skilled 
young people and adults to career pathways, but there are strengths to build on. 

> Create Alignment Between Programs and Initiatives 

– Through citywide efforts and initiatives (e.g., the Poverty Thought Force), 
Winston-Salem should inventory effective education and training 
practices across the city and identify which programs/practices should be 
expanded.

• This would also create better alignment toward outcomes among these 
initiatives. 

> Upskill Winston-Salem’s Students and Workers 

– Through partnership with Forsyth Tech and/or local community-based 
organizations, employers must lead an effort to upskill their current 
workforce and bring underserved populations onto career pathways.

– Work-based courses, ”bridging” programs, and contextualizing developmental 
education within vocational/technical courses represent promising 
approaches for Winston-Salem. 

-19-

G
-1.      D

R
A

FT



RECOMMENDATIONS (CONTINUED)

> Diversify the Manufacturing and Healthcare Sectors: 

– Non-patient care roles (e.g., medical technologists and technicians) in 
healthcare are growing and represent a promising opportunities for 
workforce development efforts.

– Production and maintenance/repair pathways are key opportunities in 
manufacturing.

In addition, a growing set of opportunities for IT and medical billing should 
be recognized as potential targets for career pathways.

> Leverage Strong Employer Leadership Across the City

–Sector-based initiatives are one model for the City to consider. In 
addition, the Winston-Salem may want to incentivize employer 
engagement/leadership by elevating those with innovative upskilling 
practices. 

-20-

G
-1.      D

R
A

FT



SARA LAMBACK
slamback@jff.org

MYRIAM SULLIVAN
msullivan@jff.org

TEL  617.728.4446   FAX  617.728.4857   info@jff.org

88 Broad Street, 8th Floor, Boston, MA 02110 (HQ)

122 C Street, NW, Suite 650, Washington, DC 20001

505 14th Street, Suite 900, Oakland, CA 94612

WWW.JFF.ORG

-21-

G
-1.      D

R
A

FT



 

-22-



 

1 of 13 
 

Winston-Salem Building Integrated Communities (BIC) 

Citywide Action Plan for Foreign-born and Hispanic Community Integration 
 

 
INTRODUCTION 

 
This action plan is proposed by the Stakeholder Committee of Winston-Salem Building Integrated 

Communities (BIC). Winston-Salem BIC is a three-year collaboration between the City of Winston-
Salem, the BIC program at the University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill, and the following members 
of local organizations and networks that represent and/or serve foreign-born and Hispanic 
communities: 
 

Winston-Salem Building Integrated Communities (BIC) Stakeholder Committee 
 
Wanda Allen-Abraha, JD  Director, Winston-Salem Human Relations Department 

Liza Baron Supervising Attorney, Legal Aid of North Carolina, Winston-
Salem Office 

Adolfo Briceño Human Relations Specialist/Hispanic Outreach, Winston-
Salem Human Relations Department 

Brittney Gaspari Vice President of Community Investment, The Winston-Salem 
Foundation 

Ravin Gore      Transportation Planner, Winston-Salem Department of 
Transportation 

Miriam Hernandez Outreach Coordinator, Crosby Scholars; Owner, Hispanic 
Interaction 

Tiesha Hinton M/WBE Coordinator, Winston-Salem Community and 
Business Development Department 

Kay Landry Program Specialist for Graduation Initiatives/Dropout 
Prevention, Winston-Salem/Forsyth County Schools 

Pauline Morris International Center at Forsyth Technical Community College 
and Adult ESL 

Drea Parker Interfaith Winston-Salem/Compassionate Winston-Salem 

Julie M. Linton, MD, FAAP Assistant Professor of Pediatrics, Wake Forest Baptist Health; 
Advocacy Director, Wake Forest Pediatric Residency Program 

Rev. Francis Rivers Meza FaithHealthNC Liaison/Chaplain Supervisor, Wake Forest 
Baptist Medical Center 

Daisy Rodriguez Director of Childhood Hunger Programs, Second Harvest Food 
Bank of Northwest NC 

David Sisk 
 

Krishna Surabhi  

ESL/LEP Program Manager, Winston-Salem/Forsyth County 
Schools 
Indo-US Cultural Association 

Mari Jo Turner Executive Director, Hispanic League 
 
Development of this plan was preceded by a one year, participatory assessment with local foreign-born 
and Hispanic communities. This assessment incorporated demographic and GIS data, a review of local 
resources, public discussion groups with more than 200 residents, and more than 200 surveys submitted 
by local residents from 23 countries of origin. Assessment findings are available to the public online in 
both English and Spanish at http://migration.unc.edu/programs/bic/reports-and-resources/. 

-23-

G-2.      DRAFT



 

2 of 13 
 

 
The actions proposed here aim to leverage existing City government structures, as well as the 
respective expertise and networks of the involved Stakeholder Committee members, to improve several 
community-identified issues with respect to educational support, English language education, 
domestic violence, government communication, health care access, driver’s checkpoints, and 
public transportation. Actions were developed by several dedicated subcommittees as specified 
throughout the plan; planning for public transportation, specifically, incorporated additional resident 
direction through three supplementary open subcommittee meetings. 
 
 

-24-

G-2.      DRAFT



 

3 of 13 
 

I. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Action Planning Subcommittee for Actions D, F, and G: Adolfo Briceño (Chair), Phyllis Caldwell, 

Karen Durell, Tiesha Hinton, Anne Holland, Robert Leak. 

 

OVERALL GOALS:  

• Increase City capacity to communicate with foreign-born and Hispanic residents. 

• Increase representation of foreign-born and Hispanic residents within diverse City/agency staff 
positions. 

• Increase foreign-born and Hispanic residents’ access to civic information and to government/agency 
services and opportunities. 

• Increase the capacity of City and local organizations for serving hearing impaired and differently-
abled residents with Limited English Proficiency (LEP). 

• Increase community awareness of Fair Housing rights, including the assistance available to foreign-
born and LEP residents experiencing domestic violence/intimate partner violence. 

 

Action A: Create the new City employee position of Integrated Communities Liaison  
 

Description:  Create the position of Integrated Communities Liaison to provide or assist with outreach 
to foreign-born populations in Winston Salem and recruit qualified, bilingual job applicants to 
vacancies within all of the City’s diverse departments. The Integrated Communities Liaison will be a 
bilingual, Spanish-speaking professional who will establish and lead the City’s outreach efforts through 
work partnerships with the Human Relations Commission, College Advisory Board, city departments, 
citizens, community and civic groups/organizations, businesses, and schools. The Liaison will also 
assist the Human Relations director with ensuring the City’s Limited English Proficiency (LEP) 
requirements are met. The Liaison would review the required diversity plans that City departments 
submit for vacancy postings to ensure that these plans incorporate effective posting venues for Spanish-
speaking communities. The Liaison will also lead and coordinate all Human Relations media outreach 
(including fair housing advertising and dissemination of new, web-based resources for foreign-born 
and Hispanic residents and services providers), intradepartmental and interdepartmental trainings, as 
needed. Specific areas of lead responsibility will include representing the City of Winston-Salem at 
local cultural festivals, the annual PRIDE Festival, reporting for the annual Human Rights Campaign 
Scorecard, and working with local non-profit organizations to provide fair housing education as it 
specifically relates to national origin discrimination. The position will also seek grant funding 
opportunities that complement the outreach initiatives of the department. 
 
Target Dates:  Post vacancy in January 2017.   
 

 

Action B: Enhance visibility of existing City incentives for employees who speak Spanish. 

Enhance recruiting efforts for job applicants with foreign language proficiency. 
 

Description:  The City of Winston Salem offers a pay incentive ($1100 annually) to individuals who 
pass a Spanish language proficiency test. This information will be added to the main webpage content 
at both www.cityofws.org/departments/human-resources and www.cityofws.org/jobs.  
 
In addition, all City vacancy listings approved by the City’s Department of Human Resources will 
incorporate the following language: 

-25-

G-2.      DRAFT



 

4 of 13 
 

 
1. The addition of “foreign language proficiency” as a desired skill for vacancy applicants (e.g. 

“Foreign-language proficiency in two or more languages a plus”), as well as 
2. An informational statement that specifies the Spanish-speaking pay incentive. 

 

Target Dates:   
November 2016 State pay incentive on www.cityofws.org/departments/human-resources and 

www.cityofws.org/jobs. 
Nov. 1, 2016 Requirement of additional language begins for Human Resources approval 

of City vacancy listings. 
  
Funding:  No cost. 
 

Action C: Expand access to translated website content for City website users.  

 

Description: The website design for www.cityofws.org will be modified as follows: 
 

1. The Spanish translator (“En Español”) button, currently located within one of four menu lists 
within the website footer, will be moved to the website header. 

2. A language translation tool (e.g. Google Translator) will be added to the string of existing icons 
(e.g. 311 and Facebook) that are currently embedded in the website header, such that site users 
can choose to view webpage content in as many of the languages spoken by Winston-Salem’s 
foreign-born and refugee populations as possible. 

 
Target Dates: Complete web design modifications by November, 2016. 

 

Funding:  Regular WSHRC/HRD budget allocations. 

 

Action D: Develop a comprehensive directory of interpretation and translation resources. 

 

Description: The Winston-Salem Human Relations Commission/Human Relations Department 
(WSHRC/HRD) aims to improve the City’s access to interpretation and translation resources, both to 
better assist its staff in communicating with foreign-born and Limited English Proficiency (LEP) 
residents and to enable WSHRC/HRD to better mediate Fair Housing disputes and assist residents 
experiencing domestic violence/intimate partner violence. 
 
WSHRC/HRD will expand the LEP Officer’s list of certified and uncertified and interpreters and 
translators to be as inclusive as possible of the many languages spoken by local refugee communities 
(e.g. Arabic, Haitian Creole, Karenni, and Swahili). WSHRC/HRD will further identify professional 
translators who can offer pro-bono translation services, as well as collaborate with Legal Aid, Forsyth 
Tech, and other partners to incorporate the interpretation and translation resources available at local 
colleges, universities, and legal resources, as necessary. This action is funded via regular 
WSHRC/HRD and other partner agency existing budget allocations. 

 

Target Dates:  
Fall 2016 Identify and compile resources available at local colleges and universities. 

Identify potential providers of pro-bono translation services. 
Dec. 15, 2016 Finalize directory.  

-26-

G-2.      DRAFT



 

5 of 13 
 

Mar. 2017 Share directory with City and community partners as a part of a web-based 
resource guide at www.cityofws.org/departments/human-relations (see 

Action E below). 
 
Funding:  Regular WSHRC/HRD budget allocations.  
 

Action E: Create a web-based guide to local educational, faith, health care, and 

interpretation and translation resources for foreign-born and Hispanic residents. 

 

Description: As referenced in Action D above and in subsequent sections of this Action Plan, the 
WSHRC/HRD Fair Housing team and BIC Action Planning Subcommittees will compile directories of 
local educational, faith, health, and interpretation and translation resources that are critical to serving 
and supporting local foreign-born and Hispanic residents (see above Action D; see below Sections II. 

Education and III. Health, Actions A and B). WSHRC/HRD will collaborate with the City’s 
Information Systems Department to consolidate and disseminate these respective directories as one 
web-based resource guide at www.cityofws.org/departments/human-relations.  
 
WSHRC/HRD staff will add to/update the guide on a quarterly basis through quarterly BIC meetings 
and/or through use of an online submission form for adding and updating listings. WSHRC/HRD staff 
will furthermore collaborate with the WS BIC Stakeholder Committee, the City’s Marketing and 
Communications departments, and the other entities as listed below to further market the availability of 
these resources to target audiences. 
 

• Compassionate Winston-Salem – Faith resources 

• Legal Aid of North Carolina- Winston-Salem Office- Legal resources 

• College Advisory Board – Educational resources 

• Interfaith Winston-Salem – Faith resources 

• International Center of Forsyth Tech – Interpretation and translation resources; conduct a least 
biannual outreach visits to ESL classes and in conjunction with college events. 

• Youth Advisory Council – Educational resources 
 
Target Dates:  
Dec. 2016 Begin biannual outreach activities at Forsyth Tech. 
Mar. 2017 Launch web-based resource guide. 
Mar. 2017 Begin outreach and marketing via other affiliated networks. 
Apr. 2017 Begin quarterly meetings of WS BIC Committee. 
 

Action F: Conduct outreach and trainings with organizations serving low-to-moderate 

income, hearing impaired, and differently-abled LEP populations. 
 
Description: This action aims to enhance the knowledge and familiarity of City and WSHRC/HRD 
staff and other services providers with hearing impaired and differently-abled populations who are 
foreign-born and/or have Limited English Proficiency (LEP). WSHRC/HRD staff will conduct 
quarterly outreach with organizations that work with hearing impaired and/or differently-abled 
populations. HR Staff will provide trainings on how these organizations can better serve individuals 
who are foreign-born and enable them to access City resources. 

 

Target Dates:  

-27-

G-2.      DRAFT



 

6 of 13 
 

Dec. 2016 Begin outreach activities. 

 

Funding:  Regular WSHRC/HRD budget allocations.  
 

Action G: Translate and disseminate Fair Housing and Code Enforcement information. 
 
In order to increase foreign-born and Hispanic residents’ awareness of their Tenants’ Rights related to 
Fair Housing and Code Enforcement, WSHRC/HRD will: 
 

• Translate Fair Housing brochures and Code Enforcement materials into Spanish, Mandarin 
Chinese, and Arabic languages. 

• Distribute Fair Housing brochures in buses, schools, libraries, bus stations, and places of worship. 

• Work with Community and Business Development Departments to distribute Code Enforcement 
materials directly to residents in homes. 

• Partner with Legal Aid to train residents and/or disseminate fair housing information affecting or 
relating to immigration status, Medicaid, benefits, domestic violence, expungements, and U Visas. 

• Post translated brochures and/or other multi-lingual information on the WSHRC/HRD website. 

• Incorporate the above activities into the WSHRC/HRD communications protocols and maintain 
multi-lingual website information.  

 
Funding:  Regular budget allocations.  
 
Target Dates:  
July 2016 Translate Fair Housing brochures. 
Fall 2016 Translate Code Enforcement materials.  
Fall 2016 Determine quantity and distribution plans for all materials. 
Dec. 2016 Complete distribution.  

Print new brochures when necessary.  
Update communications manuals and protocols to include new activities. 

 

 

 

 

-28-

G-2.      DRAFT



 

7 of 13 
 

II. EDUCATION 

 

Action Planning Subcommittee: Pauline Morris (Chair), Lissette Granados, Tiesha Hinton, Kay 

Landry, David Sisk. 

 

OVERALL GOALS:  

• Increase visibility and accessibility of public and other educational resources and opportunities 
among foreign-born and Hispanic communities. 

 

Action A: Develop a comprehensive directory of educational resources for foreign-born and 

Hispanic communities. 

             
Description: Information about educational programming will be organized and compiled into a 
comprehensive directory for inclusion in a web-based resource guide at  
www.cityofws.org/departments/human-relations (see Section I. Communications, Action E). The 
subcommittee will also report any identified gaps in interpretation and translation services to 
stakeholders and may pursue additional dissemination/marketing of the directory via local faith-based 
institutions, food agencies, media, realtors, etc.  

 

Target Dates:  
Dec. 15, 2016 Share initial directory of educational resources with WSHRC/HRD for 

dissemination at www.cityofws.org/departments/human-relations (see 

Section I. Communications, Action E). 
Summer 2017  Implement any additional dissemination/marketing of the directory. 

 

  

 

 

 

-29-

G-2.      DRAFT



 

8 of 13 
 

III. HEALTH 

 

 

Action Planning Subcommittee: Julie M. Linton, M.D., F.A.A.P. (Chair), Charlotte Haywood, R.N., 

Heather Martin, M.B.A., Shahla Namak, M.D., Mary Anne Squire, M.S.S.W., Joana Themido, M.L.S. 

(A.S.C.P.), M.A., Winston-Salem Human Relations Department. 
 

Note: WSHRC/HRD will collaborate with this subcommittee to disseminate educational materials as 

proposed in Action A below, as well as to create and disseminate the list of family-center medical 

homes proposed in Action B below. In contrast, the remaining proposed Action C will be implemented 

by non-governmental entities only and is thus not proposed as a municipal actions. 

 

OVERALL GOALS: 

• Improve access to medical care for families of foreign-born residents using the existing resources in 
our community. 

• Improve community education regarding the existing resources in our community, including 
resources related to mental health, disability, and the related resident rights of foreign-born 
residents. 

 

Action A: Enhance provider education regarding potential barriers to health care access for 

foreign-born and Hispanic families as well as opportunities to enhance access. 
 
Description:  Develop outreach by sub-committee members to medical providers in the community.  
Develop and disseminate educational materials that sub-committee members can use to educate both 
community-based organizations at various entry points into the health care system and health care 
providers about health and access among foreign-born and Hispanic families, including brochures 
about the housing rights of foreign-born and Hispanic residents with disabilities. 
 

Target Dates: 
Winter 2016 Develop electronic and hardcopy educational materials for medical 

providers. 
February 2016 Submit materials for electronic database. 
Spring 2016  Disseminate educational materials and Fair Housing brochures to health 

care providers and community-based organizations. 
Summer 2016 Obtain additional community input regarding barriers and opportunities to 

enhance access. 
   
Funding:  Dr. Linton receives 10% salary support through a Community Internship from the CTSI 
Program in Community Engagement, funded through Translational Science Institute grant 
support (M01 RR007122 from NCRR/NIH), and can include educational initiatives as part of this 
funding. 
 

Action B: Identify and increase access to practices that provide family-centered medical 

homes for foreign-born families across Winston-Salem. 
 
Description: In order to increase foreign-born residents’ access to a family-centered medical home, the 
subcommittee will build upon Forsyth Refugee Health Collaborative algorithm, which links refugees to 

-30-

G-2.      DRAFT



 

9 of 13 
 

medical homes, to include an algorithm (a flow-chart to illustrates process) that depicts methods to 
increase access for all foreign-born residents. 
 
Target Dates: 
May 2016 ü  Secured involvement of leaders of Forsyth County Refugee Health 

Collaborative. 
August 2016  Develop schematic algorithm to depict points of entry into health  

care system. 
Fall 2016 Conduct outreach to existing and potential medical providers for foreign-

born and Hispanic residents. 
Winter 2016  Develop schematic algorithm to depict referral points for health  

care access for foreign-born residents. 
February 2016  Share electronic list of practices with WSHRC/HRD for  

dissemination at www.cityofws.org/departments/human-relations (see 

Section I. Communications, Action E). 
Spring 2016  Disseminate algorithm with educational materials (see above Action A). 

 

Action C: Educate health care providers regarding access compliance, language access 

opportunities, and patients’ Fair Housing rights. 
 
Description: Assess resources at the health care providers’ offices that currently care for foreign-born 
and Hispanic residents as well as the interpretation services available to them (i.e. live, video, phone). 
Provide education regarding options to enhance interpreter access at these practices. 
 
Target Dates: 
Fall 2016  Develop educational materials about interpreter availability and  

services in Winston-Salem and surrounding region. 
Winter 2016  Assess interpreter availability at practices identified in Action B. 
Spring 2016  Include information about interpreters in educational materials to  

be disseminated (see Action Item A). 

 

-31-

G-2.      DRAFT



 

10 of 13 
 

IV. POLICE 

 
Action Planning Subcommittee:  Lieutenant T. L. Phelps, Sergeant M. J. Snow. 

 

OVERALL GOALS:  

• Improve Public Perception in Regards to Racial Profiling/Police Harassment. 

• Maintain a Reduction in the Number of Driver Checkpoints. 

• Recruit and Hire More Bilingual Officers. 

• Reduce Neighborhood Crime, Monitor Gang Activity, and Help Residents Feel Safe. 
 

Action A:  Engage in Trust Talks and other trust-building measures. 

 

Objective:  Build better trust between the police department and the community.  Develop more 
information sharing and form a partnership with community leaders.  Inform citizens as to why we 
react the way we do in certain situations.  Create a more open, honest, and transparent relationship with 
the community. 
 
Description:  We will continue to host Trust Talks on a quarterly basis.  We will continue to target 
specific areas of the community for Trust Talks, and we will continue to recruit a diverse group of 
participants.  We will continue to use in car and body worn cameras.  We will continue to attend 
community meetings.  Officers will continue to attend yearly Diversity Training. 
 
Target Dates:  Ongoing and continuous.  
 
Funding:  Police Department Annual Budget. 
 

Action B:   Reduce the number of driver’s checkpoints. 

 

Objective:  We want to maintain a reduction in the number of RANDOM driver’s checkpoints 
citywide.  In 2015 we only conducted one driver’s checkpoint.  Thus far in 2016 we have only 
conducted two driver’s checkpoints.  This will cause a reduction of driver’s checkpoints in the minority 
communities.     
 
Description:  The WSPD revised General Order 2.17 on September 27th, 2012 which states that 
Lieutenants or above must approve any driver’s checkpoint.  This changes how, where, and how often 
driver’s checkpoints take place.  Disciplinary action will be taken against officers that do not follow 
this policy. We will be able to track driver check points through department statistics. We will provide 
statistics on drivers check points to the public upon their request. Citizens may contact the Crime 
Analysis Unit at 336-773-7931 to request these statistics. The NC Governors Highway Safety Program 
announces statewide driver’s checkpoints such as “Click it or Ticket and “Booze it and Lose It” 
campaigns.        
 
Target Dates:  Ongoing and continuous. 
 
Funding:  Annual Police Budget. 
 

Action C:   Recruit and hire more bilingual officers. 

 

-32-

G-2.      DRAFT



 

11 of 13 
 

Objective:  We are dedicated to having a diverse police department. We want to hire more bilingual 
officers and establish better relationships in Hispanic communities.   
 
Details:  We are going to continue heavily recruiting Spanish-speaking officers. We will continue to 
attend recruitment fairs at military and college campuses. We will recruit lateral transfers from other 
police departments. We will continue to offer pay incentives for Spanish speaking officers, and we will 
continue to advertise and recruit through Hispanic newspapers and media outlets. We will work with 
the city’s marketing department to share job announcements with the Winston-Salem Building 
Integrated Communities’ social media networks of Spanish-speaking and foreign-born residents. 
 
Target dates:  Ongoing and continuous. 
 
Funding:  Annual Police Budget which has been increased for police recruiting for FY 2016/2017. 
 

Action D:   Reduce neighborhood crime and gang activity in our community.    

 

Objective:  We want to create a safe neighborhood for our residents.  We want to see a reduction in 
both crime and gang activity.  We strive to build a trusting and better relationship between the police 
department and the community. 
 
Description:  We are committed to protecting all residents, and we will continue to enforce laws in  
communities, including in high crime neighborhoods, to ensure public safety. We will provide 
educational materials (both English and Spanish) at community meetings about crime prevention and 
other safety tips. We hope to improve community safety while building trust and open dialogue 
between the police department and the community. 
 
Target Dates:  On going and continuous. 
 
Funding:  Annual Police Budget. 
 

-33-

G-2.      DRAFT



 

12 of 13 
 

V. PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

 

Action Planning Subcommittee: Ravin Gore (Chair), Ken Baker, Pauline Morris, Robert Garcia, Walter 

Jenkins, Jason Wilkinson, Vivian Perez. 

 

OVERALL GOALS: 

• Enhance access to public transportation for foreign-born residents.  

• Enhance access to regional transportation. 

• Build positive relationships between law enforcement and foreign-born and Hispanic communities 
with respect to transportation.              

              
Action Item A: Translate and disseminate information about Public Transportation. 
 
Objective: Provide information about new City bus routes to foreign-born and Hispanic residents. 

 
Description: The City of Winston-Salem has established new public transportation routes that will be 
implemented on January 2, 2017. The new routes will provide greater access to more neighborhoods 
throughout the City, particularly in areas with high concentrations of minority and foreign-born 
residents. The Winston-Salem Transportation Authority (WSTA) will share information with foreign-
born communities served by the bus routes in the following ways: 

 

• Provide information in English and Spanish (e.g. signage, the website, and printed brochures). 
 

• Work with the Marketing Department and UNC Area Studies Centers to create a promotional poster 
for the new routes that includes the most commonly spoken foreign languages in Forsyth County: 
Spanish, Mandarin Chinese, French, and Hindi, as well as refugee languages like Karenni, Haitian 
Creole, and Arabic.  

 

• Share promotional materials and place posters (posters, flyers, brochures) at bus stops in 
neighborhoods with high concentrations of foreign-born residents as well as at the Human 
Relations Department’s annual International Village festival and the annual, city-sponsored Fiesta 
celebration. Provide interpretation in Spanish at public meetings promoting the new bus routes. 

 

• Send bus route information and conduct outreach with non-profit organizations and businesses with 
strong connections to foreign-born and Hispanic communities. 

 
Target Date: Implement in January 2017. 
 
Funding: Winston-Salem Transit Authority  (WSTA) 

 

 

Action Item B: Build foreign language capacity within the Winston-Salem Transportation 

Department. 
 
Description: Employ staff with multilingual skills and/or Spanish proficiency via: 
 

• Hiring ads and recruiting efforts for bus drivers and call center staff should communicate that 
WSTA seeks to employ individuals with Spanish and/or other foreign language skills (Chinese, 

-34-

G-2.      DRAFT



 

13 of 13 
 

Vietnamese, Hindi, Urdu, Arabic, Haitian Creole). Work with Transdev Company to incorporate 
this language into hiring ads.  

• The City of Winston-Salem offers a pay incentive ($1100 annually) to individuals who pass a 
Spanish proficiency test; extend this benefit to Transdev employees.  

• Advertise prominently on the WSTA webpage that the WSTA Call Center has Spanish-speaking 
staff (e.g. “Llámanos!”) and include a link to the WSTA call center on the City’s “En Español” 
page. 

 
Target Dates: Implement in Fall 2016 - Spring 2017. 
 
Funding: Winston-Salem Transit Authority (WSTA) 
 

Action Item C:  Enhance access to Regional Transportation. 
 
Description: Collaborate with Piedmont Area Regional Transportation (PART) and surrounding area 
Public Transportation to enhance foreign-born residents’ access to regional transportation options via: 

• WSTA has increased regional collaboration with PART to create better connections that provide 
more flexibility for riders. As part of this collaboration, WSTA will share materials developed 
for foreign-born residents with PART.  

• WSTA bus drivers will share Spanish language PART brochures with riders. 
 
Target Date: Implement in January 2017. 
  
Funding: Piedmont Area Regional Transportation (PART) 
 

Action Item D:     Build positive relationships between law enforcement and foreign-born and 

Hispanic communities with respect to transportation. 

 
Description: Collaborate with the W-S Police Department to share information about public 
transportation as an alternative to driving without an operator’s license via:  

• Share WSTA brochures in Spanish and English about new bus routes and PART services with law 
enforcement agents who can distribute them when appropriate to individuals who are driving 
without an operator’s license.  

• The Department of Transportation (DOT) will work with the W-S Human Relations Department to 
participate in, and discuss public transportation during, those sessions of the Trust Talks program 
that specifically target populations who do not speak English and/or for whom English is a second 
language. Conduct Trust Talks at both the WSTA and PART facilities. 

 
Target Date: Implement in March 2017. 
 
Funding: Forsyth County and Winston-Salem Law Enforcement Agencies. 

-35-

G-2.      DRAFT



 

-36-



 

 

 

 

TO: Mayor Allen Joines and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Derwick L. Paige, Assistant City Manager 

DATE: August 25, 2016 

SUBJECT: Report on Compassionate Cities 

CC:  

 

 

Ms. Drea Parker and Ms. Elizabeth Corney with Compassionate Cities will provide a 

report at the September Community Development/Housing/General Government 

Committee highlighting the accomplishments from their third year. 

 

 
_________________________ 

Derwick L. Paige 

 

pc:  Lee D. Garrity, City Manager 

 

 

-37-

G-3.      DRAFT



 

-38-



Interfaith Winston-Salem 

Presentation to Community Development/Housing/General Government Committee 

 
Compassionate Winston-Salem – Three-Year Anniversary 

 

History: On July 9, 2013, the Community Development/Housing/General Government Committee unanimously 

approved a resolution for the development of a program to make Winston-Salem a participant in the Campaign 

for Compassionate Cities. City Council unanimously endorsed the resolution July 15, 2013 upon sponsorship of 

Council member Molly Leight. 

 

Accomplishments and Milestones 

 

• Structure 

o Coordinators of Compassionate Winston-Salem include Drea Parker and Truman Dunn; Dean Clifford, 

early childhood education and elementary schools; Jerry McLeese, Interfaith; Valerie Glass, Restorative 

Justice, and Wanda Allen-Abraha and Jayme Waldeck, HRC. 

• Education  

o To date, nine Compassion Corners have been installed elementary schools in our district.  

o 5 Compassion Corners have been requested by other schools for installation and dedication in the 

2016-2017 school year. 

§ The Compassion Corner project is part of a broader effort to instill compassionate 

values among all campus constituencies.   

• Interfaith 

o More than 1000 community members, ranging in age from kindergarten through the nineties have 

participated in: 

§ a Festival of Faith and Culture in which they learned about other traditions. 

§ Visiting the Community Mosque, St. Phillips Moravian and Our Lady of Mercy, April 

2016 to learn about the faith traditions of their neighbors.   

§ Coming together on the first Sunday morning of each month for breakfast and to hear 

about the faith journeys of neighbors and friends over the last year. 

§ Coming together on the third Monday evening of each month to hear about a faith 

leader’s point of view on a given topic, to then move into break-out groups to continue 

the dialogue from each person at the table. Liam Hooper shared his presentation on 

what it means to be a transgendered person, and Margot Lobree shared her experience 

as a Holocaust survivor, among many featured topics. 

• HRC 

o The Building Integrated Communities (BIC) initiative continues to have progressed well during its first 

year (FY 14-15).  The BIC stakeholders have worked hard with UNC-Chapel Hill to survey, engage, and 

meet with foreign-born residents.  Compassionate Winston-Salem, as a program of Interfaith WS is one 

of the community stakeholders.  For FY 16-17, the BIC stakeholders will be reviewing and emending the 

BIC Immigrant Community Needs Assessment Report.  Compassionate Winston-Salem anticipates 

continuing to serve in an advisory capacity for BIC’s next steps with developing a community plan of 

action. CWS will also continue partner with HRC on Immigrant Trust Talks, International Village, and 

other City-HRD programs. 

• Social 

o Valerie Glass and Jerry McLeese are working to develop community partnerships to establish a 

Restorative Justice program in our school system to address recidivism.  

 

• Homeless 

o Volunteers in Compassionate Winston-Salem continue to prepare and serve meals to homeless 

individuals at the Bethesda Center each month.  

o Compassionate Winston-Salem, as a program of Interfaith WS anticipates continuing partnership with 

City with Dwellings, a subsidiary of Anthony’s Plot.  

-39-

G-3.      DRAFT



 

-40-



Restorative Justice Initiative 

 

 

By establishing a common understanding of what Restorative Justice (RJ) is and 

what it is not and sharing data from other locations that illustrate the impact of RJ 

on recidivism, etc., task leaders Valerie Glass and Jerry McLeese are creating an 

example of how Restorative Justice programs can fit into the existing school 

structure, starting with Cook Elementary School. RJ will illustrate outcomes 

addressing WSFCS efforts to reduce achievement disparities and build positive 

benefits for students across the system. 

 

 

A Compassionate Justice (submitted by Valerie Glass) 

 

Compassionate Winston-Salem has a favorite saying: “Justice is compassion 

raised to an institutional level.” When I think about this quote, it really gets me to 

think deeper about the meaning of the word justice. What is justice? How do we 

achieve justice? And what does it mean to “hold someone accountable?” The 

answers to these questions aren’t simple, and then they lead me to more questions – 

Can we do better justice? Who decides if justice has been served? Are there other 

ways to think about justice?  

In his book Changing Lens, Howard Zehr says, “True justice cannot occur 

unless people and relationships are transformed into something that is healthy so 

the injury does not recur.” Restorative justice is justice that focuses on transforming 

and healing relationships. How does restorative justice compare to our traditional 

justice system? Zehr summarizes it briefly by comparing the questions we seek to 

answer: 

Our traditional justice system tries to answer three questions: 

• What crime was committed? 

• Who committed the crime? 

• How should they be punished? 

Restorative Justice asks three very different questions: 

• What harm has been caused? 

• Who has been impacted by this harm and what are their needs? 

• Who is responsible for addressing the needs and healing this harm? 

Restorative Justice recognizes the importance of everyone involved -  the victim, 

the offender and the community that surrounds them. A foundation of respect for all 

people undergirds every interaction between those involved – extending 

compassion in a process that so desperately needs it. Victims are able to express the 

depths of their ordeal and are empowered to contribute their wishes in the process 

and in the outcome. Offenders face the real aftermath of their actions – not the 

arrest, trial and prison – but the effects of the harm they inflicted on another person. 

They are accountable for the hurt they caused and take an active role in repairing it 

– more meaningful than a sentence imposed passively onto the offender that has 

nothing to do with the injury. The community surrounds both and finds ways to 

-41-

G-3.      DRAFT



support the victims in their path to healing, and also support the offenders in their 

journey to a new, restored life as a valued community member. 

Restorative justice also has applications in our schools. Suspensions have been 

the go-to discipline approach for a range of infractions for decades, and with the 

expanding reach of zero-tolerance policies, suspensions are increasing quickly. But 

there is no evidence to show that suspensions are highly effective tools for helping 

students change their behavior. In fact, suspensions can have lasting and harmful 

effects. Recent reports have revealed an alarming trend of racial disparity in the use 

of suspensions.  In North Carolina, African-American students receive 51% of the 

total suspensions, but only make up 26% of our school enrollment. Every 

suspension increases the likelihood that a student will drop out of school. Multiple 

studies have shown a strong correlation between students who have been 

suspended and their chances of future involvement in the juvenile or adult criminal 

justice systems. This school-to-prison-pipeline has devastating effects on our 

communities.  

Restorative Practices is the movement to enact the values of restorative 

justice in our everyday lives. When restorative practices are applied in a school 

setting, there is an emphasis on building relationships and developing a strong 

sense of community. Restorative practices help teachers and administrators connect 

with students. This personal connection to their school community encourages 

students to be more involved in the classroom and in their learning. As a result, this 

higher level of connectedness helps keep kids in school – from reduced suspension 

rates to higher attendance and graduation rates (see www.SaferSanerSchools.com 

for additional statistics). Lowered suspension rates do not mean that students are 

getting away with disruptive and harmful behaviors. Students are still held 

accountable for their actions. Indeed, they are held to a higher level of accountability 

than a simple suspension because they must admit how their actions impacted 

others and take steps to repair the harm they caused. 

The way we understand and pursue justice can have a profound impact on 

individuals and the community.  Through this restorative approach, my own 

understanding of justice has deepened and compels me to seek alternative paths to 

justice. I hope our community can come together, through initiatives like 

Compassionate Winston-Salem and others, to explore ways to foster a more 

restorative Forsyth County. Stay connected with updates by following on facebook 

at RestorativeForsyth or on twitter @RestorativeNC. If you want to be actively 

involved in this initiative, contact Jerry McLeese at jmcLeese1@yahoo.com or 

Valerie Glass at vglass3@gmail.com. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-42-

G-3.      DRAFT



Compassion Corner Bench Program 
 
 
Compassion Corner benches have been installed at the following elementary schools:  

• Bolton, Moore Magnet, Old Town, Petree, WS Montessori,  

• Sedge Garden, Vienna, Ibraham, Diggs-Latham 
 
 

    
 
 
 
 
 

Benches are scheduled to be installed during the 2016-17 school year at the following schools 
in Forsyth County: 

• Clemmons Elementary, Cook Elementary, Meadowlark Elementary School,  

• Jefferson Elementary and Rural Hall Elementary  
 
 

We’re in conversation with Brunson, Diggs-Latham and Whitaker Elementary schools to 
continue implementing our five-year plan to have a Compassion Corner bench installed at all 
47 schools in the Winston-Salem/Forsyth County School System 

 

Dean Clifford, coordinator of Compassionate 

Winston-Salem's Education Task Force sits on the 

bench at Vienna Elementary. 

Sedge Garden Elementary Compassion Corner 

Bench artwork designed by art teacher Bill Neagle, 

and completed by everyone at the school 

-43-

G-3.      DRAFT



 

-44-



City with Dwellings is a collaborative effort among diverse community members and 
institutions, addressing the challenges of homelessness and the isolation it creates.  The 
philosophy of City with Dwellings is known as “Community First”; the premise being that any 
transformation to a person’s experience of homelessness must include (re)constructing 
restorative community around that person.  

City with Dwellings was formally initiated in December 2013, when the need for 
additional winter overflow emergency shelter was noted by the Homeless Council (now, “COC”) 
and a contract was issued by the Ten Year Plan to Anthony’s Plot to organize the space and 
volunteers for this program.  Anthony’s Plot held discussions with Compassionate Winston-
Salem at that time to imagine how the model of Compassionate W-S could be applied to this 
winter shelter.  The goals emerged as such: 1)to bring together a diverse cross-section of our 
city-community around the vision of ending homelessness; 2)to create hospitable space for 
those facing homelessness, especially for those who often decline homeless services due to 
perceptions of inaccessibility; 3)primarily to provide life-saving food and shelter, 4)but also to 
build trust and engage the person holistically in an effort to guide them toward housing and 
health; 5)with the additional benefit of breaking down the walls that prevent members of our 
community who have never known homelessness from interacting with those who are currently 
homeless.  After identifying these goals, “City with Dwellings” was chosen as the name for this 
work; it comes from the Hebrew scripture of Isaiah, which states that a healthy community 
includes all people laboring to make sure everyone has a place dwell.

To date, we have seen success in our goals.  City with Dwellings has grown to over 100 
participating “community groups” that range from congregations of all faiths, to academic 
institutions and their students, to different political and social groups.  There are four primary 
winter shelter sites we use, and we are intentional about how we assign each of these 
community groups to a site to ensure diversity. This diversity benefits our guests, but it largely 
benefits our community as we learn how to work collaboratively.  

We have been successful at using a model in our winter shelters which promotes spaces 
of hospitality and welcome, while also stressing safety and boundaries; this space breeds trust, 
and it has allowed us to accomplish a vast amount of work with our city’s most vulnerable 
homeless population.  

Over the past three years, life-changing relationships have been formed, advocates 
have grown, congregations and institutions have increased their engagement in this social 
issue, the most difficult to house persons have been transitioning into housing, and a growing 
number of people are maintaining relationships that prevent recently housed persons from 
“falling out the back end.”  

We are proud of the work done and how we continue to grow into our “Community First” 
philosophy.  We have no desire to continue opening winter overflow shelters indefinitely.  Our 
hope is that the creativity and resourcefulness of our community will not only lead to a faster 
end to homelessness, but will lead to preventative strategies that have all but become extinct in 
these difficult economic times.  

Our goals at City with Dwellings can be traced back upstream to the generative conversations 
and emerging partnership that took place between Anthony’s Plot and Compassionate W-S, 
who continue to organize volunteers for the St Timothy’s Episcopal overflow site.   

-45-

G-3.      DRAFT



 

-46-



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attached, please find the Human Relations Commission's Major Program and Project 

Highlights for the 2015-2016 fiscal year.  

 

Also, please note the following undertakings of the staff during the past fiscal year: 

 

1. Approximately 50 outreach and educational programs and public forums and  

discussions were conducted; 

2. Approximately 15,000 citizens attended or viewed outreach and education 

programs as well as public forums and discussions; 

3. Approximately 675 total inquiries and complaints were processed; 

4. Approximately 550 housing-related cases were processed; and 

 

The Human Relations Commission, in adopting its Strategic Action Plan, recognizes 

the need to continue fostering an environment that initiates and supports multi-racial 

and multi-ethnic inclusion in our community.  The Commission also embraces the 

ordinance amending Article III, Division 8 of Chapter 2 of the City Code, as adopted by 

the City Council on January 21, 2003, charging the Commission with facilitating 

partnerships with fair housing and cultural community organizations in furtherance of 

the Commission’s purpose. To achieve the Commission’s purpose, we respectfully 

request your support of the following recommendations: 

 

1. The Human Relations Commission recognizes the importance of building and 

maintaining effective lines of communication between city government and the 

community. By improving the dialogue with our diverse community groups, city 

government can ensure that the City of Winston-Salem fosters an environment that 

is conducive for an atmosphere in which everyone is treated fairly. In carrying out 

its strategic goals, the Commission will increase its outreach efforts in all areas of 

the community and will seek input from the City Council on issues or concerns in 

their respective wards.   

 

TO: Mayor Allen Joines and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Nora Baker, Human Relations Commission Chairperson 

Wanda Allen-Abraha, Human Relations Department Director 

DATE: September 13, 2016 

SUBJECT: Summary of 2015-2016 Human Relations Commission Strategic 

Action Plan and Human Relations Department Annual Report 

CC: Lee D. Garrity 

 

      

-47-

G-4.      DRAFT



2 

 

2. The Human Relations Commission seeks to build a stronger relationship with City 

officials and City commissions by inviting input and attendance for Human Relations 

programs and activities. 

 

3. The Department will continue to provide a bilingual staff member who can assist with 

proactive outreach measures that will facilitate building positive relations between the 

City government and our rapidly increasing Hispanic population. 

 

The Commission appreciates the continual support it has received from the City 

Council. Your continued support will only strengthen the Human Relations 

Commission efforts in working on behalf of all the citizens in Winston-Salem. The 

Commission welcomes any comments or questions you may have.  Additional copies of 

this annual report summary and the full 2015-2016 annual report are available upon 

request. 

 

______________________________________ 

Wanda Allen-Abraha 

 

 

Attachment 

 

-48-

G-4.      DRAFT



   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Human Relations Department 
 

 

 

ANNUAL REPORT 
Fiscal Year 2015-2016 

 

Wanda Allen-Abraha, JD 

Human Relations Director 

 

-49-

G-4.      DRAFT



Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015----2016201620162016                                                                                                        WinstonWinstonWinstonWinston----Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations 

DepartmentDepartmentDepartmentDepartment    

Page 2 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

Human Relations Commission 
 

Mission, Vision, and History….…………………………………………………………………………….. Page 3 

Commission’s Relationship to City Government….………………………………………………. Page 4 

Commission’s Relationship to Staff…………………………………………………………………….. Page 4 

Commission’s Relationship to the Community……………………………………………………. Page 4 

 

Human Relations Department 

Overview……………………………………………………………………………………………………………… Page 5 

Management’s Comments…………………………………………………………………………………… Page 6 

Programs and Performance Measures………………………………………………………………… Page 7 

Limited English Proficiency……………………………………………………………………………. Page 8 

 Boards and Commissions………………………………………………………………………………. Page 9 

 Complaint Resolution…………………………………………………………………………………….. Page 13 

 Education and Training…………………………………………………………………………………. Page 14 

 Community Relations……………………………………………………………………………………. Page 16 

  

Program and Project Highlights……………………………………………………………………………. Page 17 

 

Outline of Goals…………………………………………………………………………..………………………. Page 22 

  

Outreach/Education Training Modules………………………………………………………………… Page 23 

 

Budget Summary…………………………………………………………………………………………………. Page 24 

 

Recommendations to the City Council…………………………………………………………………. Page 25 

 

Related Boards and Commissions………………………………………………………………………… Page 26 

 
Appendix A:  FY 2015-2016 Education and Outreach Report 

Appendix B:  FY 2014-2016 Commission Strategic Action Plan 

Appendix C:  Compassionate Winston-Salem Plan of Action 

 

 
 

 

 

-50-

G-4.      DRAFT



Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015----2016201620162016                                                                                                        WinstonWinstonWinstonWinston----Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations 

DepartmentDepartmentDepartmentDepartment    

Page 3 
 

HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION 

MISSION STATEMENT 

 

The mission of Human Relations is to create, facilitate, promote, anticipate, study, and 

recommend programs, projects, feedback, and actions for the elimination of 

discrimination in any and all fields of human relationships. 
 

 

 

COMMISSION’S VISION 
 

“Winston-Salem—A Place Where Everyone is Treated Fairly” 

 

 

 

 

HISTORY 

 

In February 1978, the City Council amended Section I, Chapter 2 of the City Code and created 

the Winston-Salem Human Relations Commission by adopting an ordinance entitled “An 

Ordinance Creating A Human Relations Commission.”  In June of 1978, the Commission was 

funded $31,000 by the City Council to carry out the provisions of the Ordinance. On August 2, 

1978, A Memorandum of Understanding was signed between the City of Winston-Salem and 

the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.  Through this agreement, the City 

established a fair housing strategy task force, which became the New Horizons Fair Housing 

Committee, the only mandated committee of the Human Relations Commission. The first 

Human Relations Director, Herman Aldridge, was hired on October 30, 1978, as Director of the 

Human Relations Department.   

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
Reverend K.O.P. Goodwin 

               Original Chair of the  

Human Relations Commission 

              1978 

 

 

-51-

G-4.      DRAFT



Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015----2016201620162016                                                                                                        WinstonWinstonWinstonWinston----Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations 

DepartmentDepartmentDepartmentDepartment    

Page 4 
 

 

THE COMMISSION'S RELATIONSHIP TO CITY GOVERNMENT 

 

The government of the City of Winston-Salem and the general management and control of all 

its affairs are vested in the City Council and the Mayor. The City Council appoints the City 

Manager who is the administrative head of City government and is responsible for the 

administration of all departments of City government. The City Council is also the appointing 

authority for members of the Human Relations Commission. 

 

The Commission keeps the City Manager and the City Council informed of its activities.  To 

further that communication, the chairperson or a designated member of the Commission shall 

appear annually before the City Council to provide them with information on the pulse of the 

community; a yearly progress report on Commission programs and projects; and a presentation 

on noted problem or possible problem areas within the community. 

 

The Commission makes suggestions and recommendations to the City Council concerning new 

City ordinances or amendments to existing local ordinances relevant to the welfare and needs 

of the citizens of Winston-Salem. 

 

THE COMMISSION'S RELATIONSHIP TO THE STAFF  

 

The Commission’s relationship with the Human Relations staff involves advising in the directing 

of staff regarding fair housing and cultural community concerns and issues.  During the process 

of initiating programs and investigating complaints and problems, the Commission calls on the 

staff for technical assistance and research into matters that are brought to the Commission. 

 

THE COMMISSION'S RELATIONSHIP TO THE COMMUNITY 

 

The Human Relations Commission is the body through which citizens’ problems and concerns 

can be relayed to City officials. 

Often, this is accomplished 

through public hearings and 

forums.  Through these 

hearings and forums, the 

Commission can actively solicit 

citizen input and monitor the 

climate of the community in an 

effort to proactively minimize 

problems and stay abreast of 

changing needs. Citizens may 

also contact individual 

Commissioners with concerns 

or attend Commission meetings 

and voice their concerns. 

-52-

G-4.      DRAFT



Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015----2016201620162016                                                                                                        WinstonWinstonWinstonWinston----Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations 

DepartmentDepartmentDepartmentDepartment    

Page 5 
 

THE WINSTON-SALEM HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION 
 

OVERVIEW 

 

The Winston-Salem Human Relations Department is the working arm of the Commission and is 

responsible for the overall operation of the Department and Commission. 

 

The staff is comprised of a Human Relations Director, two Human Relations Specialists, an 

Outreach Specialist, and an Intake Specialist, who work under the general direction of the City 

Manager. The staff is guided by laws, ordinances and regulations pertaining to the operation of 

municipal government and is subject to policies, procedures and guidance adopted by the 

Winston-Salem City Council. 

 

The staff performs professional and creative work in planning, promoting, coordinating, and 

implementing programs related to an extensive range of municipal human relationships.  The 

objectives of the programs are to eliminate discrimination and to develop mutual respect and 

understanding among all racial and ethnic groups throughout the city.  The work requires 

specialized performance on a wide variety of human problems and human relationships, which 

are generally of a complex social nature. The Director, through her staff, provides liaison, 

clerical assistance, and research support to the Commission and the committees appointed by 

the Commission. 

 

Activities of the Commission are oriented toward the reduction of conflict and tension among 

all racial and ethnic groups, and toward equal rights, responsibilities and privileges for all 

citizens of the community. The Director also affects and maintains liaisons and coordinated 

relationships between her department and other City departments, boards, committees and 

commissions, organizations and agencies within the City. 

 

The Commission establishes and maintains efficient, effective and dependable communication 

with individual citizens, citizen groups, the business community, churches, and social 

organizations as a representative of City government in a continuous relationship. 
 

 

 

-53-

G-4.      DRAFT



Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015----2016201620162016                                                                                                        WinstonWinstonWinstonWinston----Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations 

DepartmentDepartmentDepartmentDepartment    

Page 6 
 

MANAGEMENT’S COMMENTS 
WANDA ALLEN-ABRAHA, DIRECTOR 

 
The vision of the Winston-Salem Human Relations Commission is: “Winston-Salem: A place 

where everyone is treated fairly.”  Since the arrival of the current director in November 2001, 

the Commission continues to make improving its image and visibility in the community a 

Strategic Action Plan priority.  By implementing the director's approach in implementing new 

systems and streamlining successful procedures, an increase in productivity with regard to the 

number of investigations, special projects, and community outreach efforts will result. 

Specifically, the department continues to disseminate quarterly newsletters and tape two 

quarterly television shows on WSTV-13 (Nexus and Tu Comunidad) that feature human 

relations topics, programs, issues, and partners.  

 

The Commission continues to focus its investigations on the areas in which it has jurisdiction 

and enforcement authority.  These areas are primarily focused on discrimination issues, as 

described in the Fair Housing Act. The Department will also continue to mediate, investigate 

and process landlord/tenant issues, as per North Carolina General Statutes, specifically Chapter 

42.  Additionally, the Department has forged an historic partnership with the Forsyth County 

District Court, the City Attorney’s Office, and Legal Aid of Northwest North Carolina to 

implement the Alternative Residential Mediation program, which will provide residents with a 

free, expedient, non-litigious way to resolve landlord/tenant complaints. It is the first of its kind 

in North Carolina. 

 

The Commission continues to participate in the administration of the Fair Housing Assistance 

Program (FHAP) grant through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).  

The FHAP grant's focus parallels the focus of the Commission by emphasizing the importance of 

continual community education and outreach.  Additionally, the FHAP grant utilizes a system of 

tracking fair housing investigations that is compatible with the Department's internal system of 

ensuring a thorough, step-by-step process for enforcing the Fair Housing Act.  

 

The Commission will continue its focus on community education and outreach with respect to 

Fair Housing and landlord/tenant laws. The Commission will expand its efforts in ensuring that 

every segment of the City's population has access to the services of the Department.  For 

instance, the Department launched the Fair Housing Media Campaign to begin a multi-media 

effort to raise awareness of the investigative and mediation services that are offered by the 

department.  Specific media outlets include the Internet, radio, television, and print media.  The 

Department also continues to employ two bilingual staff members who can communicate with 

members of the Hispanic community.  Staff will continue to field questions from the general 

public via telephone and in person.  Staff will also continue to conduct and track at least one 

-54-

G-4.      DRAFT



Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015----2016201620162016                                                                                                        WinstonWinstonWinstonWinston----Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations 

DepartmentDepartmentDepartmentDepartment    

Page 7 
 

outreach and/or training per month. 

-55-

G-4.      DRAFT



Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015----2016201620162016                                                                                                        WinstonWinstonWinstonWinston----Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations 

DepartmentDepartmentDepartmentDepartment    

Page 8 
 

DESCRIPTION OF COMMISSION PROGRAMS/PERFORMANCE MEASURES 
 

I. Complaint Resolution.  This program receives, investigates, conciliates, and mediates 

citizens' allegations of discriminatory civil rights complaints and unfair treatment in 

residential housing based on race, national origin, gender, familial status, disability, and 

color, and religion, as per the federal Fair Housing Act.  This program also promulgates 

adherence to North Carolina General Statute Chapter 42, as it relates to landlord/tenant 

law.  

 

II. Education and Training.  This program sponsors education, training, and outreach that 

provide formal, informal, and informational classes and seminars to citizens, citizen 

groups, businesses, and others about fair housing, landlord/tenant issues, cultural 

diversity, disability, and other human and civil rights issues. 

 

III. Community Relations.  This program sponsors and co-sponsors forums and projects for 

the community that provide information to citizens in partnership with community 

grassroots organizations and agencies who serve specific segments of the population who 

are traditionally overlooked.  

 

IV. Limited English Proficiency. This program and policy sets forth the basic requirements 

and procedures intended to ensure City of Winston-Salem government takes reasonable 

steps to consistently meet its legal obligation of language access requirements in 

compliance with Title VI and E.O. 13166. The City of Winston-Salem is committed to 

improving the accessibility of services to persons with Limited English Proficiency (LEP) 

and to developing and implementing a system that gives LEP persons “meaningful access” 

to the City of Winston-Salem’s programs and services.  The City of Winston-Salem has 

adopted the goal of improving Hispanic Relations, as per the City Council’s Strategic Plan.  

As a result, the City of Winston-Salem has delegated authority for an LEP Compliance 

Coordinator (the Human Relations Director) within the Human Relations Department.  

 

Congress enacted Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 to ensure federal money is not 

used to support discrimination on the basis of race or national origin in government 

activities. Section 601 states: “No person in the United States shall, on ground of race, 

color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or 

be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial 

assistance.” Neither Title VI, nor its implementing regulations discuss linguistic access per 

se; however, the courts have consistently found a close connection between national 

origin and language.  

 

In 2000, the President signed Executive Order (E.O.) 13166 mandating all federal agencies 

and recipients of federal financial assistance take reasonable steps to ensure meaningful 

access to their programs to limited English proficient (LEP) individuals.  These individuals 

may be entitled to language assistance with respect to a particular type of service, 

benefit, or encounter.  

-56-

G-4.      DRAFT



Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015----2016201620162016                                                                                                        WinstonWinstonWinstonWinston----Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations 

DepartmentDepartmentDepartmentDepartment    

Page 9 
 

 DESCRIPTION OF PROGRAMS CONTINUED 

 

The City of Winston-Salem receives federal funding in support of programs, services, and 

activities through the following all departments receiving federal funding. The City also 

receives special federal grants or appropriations from time to time to undertake capital 

projects.  

 

The LEP Compliance Coordinator (Human Relations Director) in the Human Relations 

Department is responsible for examining all City services, providing outreach to the 

growing LEP community, and interfacing with all City Departments to help ensure 

meaningful access to LEP clients and customers.  The LEP Compliance Coordinator is able 

to assist and support Departmental staff in assessing their specific needs and preparing a 

draft LEP document. The LEP Compliance Coordinator performs the role of resource and 

advocate for effective plan development.  

 

The LEP Compliance Coordinator also coordinates the Spanish Language Assessment Tool 

used by hiring Departments in conjunction with normal Human Resources processes to 

evaluate the Spanish language proficiencies of prospective employees whose jobs may 

require or prefer bi-lingual abilities, or current employees who may be called upon by the 

Department to assist their Spanish-speaking customers or clients.  

 

The LEP Compliance Coordinator is not unilaterally responsible for directly providing 

translation or interpretation services to City Departments. The LEP Compliance 

Coordinator is responsible for identifying and maintaining a network of qualified 

community resources for referral to City Departments. 

 

V. Boards and Commissions 

 

College Advisory Board (CAB) (See the separate College Advisory Board Annual Report) 

 

In May 2010, the Winston-Salem City Council designated the Human Relations 

Department to administer a newly-created advisory board consisting of full-time 

volunteer college students from Forsyth County colleges and universities.  The newly-

created College Advisory Board (herein after referred to as “CAB”) advises the Winston-

Salem City Council regarding matters of interest to students who are enrolled in colleges 

and universities in Winston-Salem.  

 

The CAB serves to represent the needs, interests, and concerns of college students and 

recent graduates by engaging them in relevant community projects, programs, and issues. 

The CAB serves as a college advisory entity to the City Council regarding areas such as 

economic development projects, transit advocacy, and student housing issues (and other 

issues the group may suggest) that will encourage students to remain in Winston-Salem 

post graduation.  All of these areas either directly or indirectly impact student fair housing 

opportunities and/or impediments. 

-57-

G-4.      DRAFT



Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015----2016201620162016                                                                                                        WinstonWinstonWinstonWinston----Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations 

DepartmentDepartmentDepartmentDepartment    

Page 10 
 

 DESCRIPTION OF PROGRAMS CONTINUED 

 

One of the goals and objectives of the CAB is to voice concerns and resources pertaining 

to off-campus student housing issues involving landlords, property managers, and fair 

housing matters.  A specific plan of action is to develop a sub-committee of the CAB to 

receive and mediate fair housing and landlord/tenant issues, which could potentially 

develop into fair housing complaints, from the college students and against the college 

students who reside in off-campus housing.  This sub-committee would work in 

partnership with other city departments and community agencies, as needed.  Fair 

housing and landlord/tenant training would also be a component of the resolution. CAB 

students and neighborhood leaders would be encouraged to coordinate and assist in 

conducting these trainings in partnership.  

 

The duties of the board are:  

 

(a) Suggest and contribute ideas to economic development projects that will appeal to 

college students and young professionals;  

 

(b) Advocate for public transit availability and accessibility at various colleges and 

universities;  

 

(c) Voice concerns and resources pertaining to off-campus student housing issues 

involving landlords, property managers, and fair housing matters;  

 

(d) Actively engage in learning about community leadership opportunities that will 

encourage and foster partnerships with colleges and universities, as well as young 

professionals; and  

 

(e) Encourage college students to remain in Winston-Salem after graduation. 

 

 
2015-2016 College Advisory Board 

-58-

G-4.      DRAFT



Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015----2016201620162016                                                                                                        WinstonWinstonWinstonWinston----Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations 

DepartmentDepartmentDepartmentDepartment    

Page 11 
 

Human Relations Commission (HRC) 

 

In 1975, the Winston-Salem Human Relations Commission was established as an advisory 

board by city ordinance by the Board of Aldermen (now the "City Council"), pursuant to 

the provisions of G.S. 160A-492.  The Commission was originally established to study race 

relations and forms of discrimination. The nature and the extent of its policies and 

programs are determined and set by the commission and shall be implemented within 

accepted policies and procedures of the city.  

 

The Duties of the Commission are: 
 

(A) To study problems of discrimination in any or all fields of human relationships 

and encourage fair treatment and mutual understanding among all ethnic 

groups in the city; 

 

(B) To promote equality of opportunity for all citizens; 

 

(C) To provide channels of communication among all ethnic groups; 

 

(D) To encourage the employment of qualified people of all ethnic groups; 

 

(E) To encourage youth to become better trained and qualified for employment 

opportunities; 

 

(F) To anticipate and discover those practices and customs most likely to create 

animosity and unrest among racial and ethnic groups and by consultation seek a 

solution as these problems arise or are anticipated; 

 

(G)  To hold such meetings as the Commission may deem necessary or proper to 

assist in carrying out its functions; 

 

(H) To make recommendations to the City Council for action it deems necessary to 

the furtherance of harmony among racial and ethnic groups in the city; and to 

perform such other duties consistent with the general law as may be assigned it 

from time to time by the City of Council. 

 

(I) On August 2, 1978, A Memorandum of Understanding was signed between the 

City of Winston-Salem and the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 

Development.  Through this agreement, the City established a fair housing 

strategy task force, which became the New Horizons Fair Housing Committee, 

the only mandated committee of the Human Relations Commission.  

 

Through efforts of the New Horizons Fair Housing Committee and others, the 

Board of Aldermen adopted the Winston-Salem Fair Housing Ordinance on May 

-59-

G-4.      DRAFT



Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015----2016201620162016                                                                                                        WinstonWinstonWinstonWinston----Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations 

DepartmentDepartmentDepartmentDepartment    

Page 12 
 

17, 1982.  In addition to the Ordinance, the City Council adopted Rules and 

Regulations to provide guidelines for the Human Relations Staff in carrying out 

the provisions of the Ordinance. 

 

(J) In accordance with the ordinance amending Article III, Division 8 of Chapter 2 of 

the City Code, as adopted by the City Council on January 21, 2003, to facilitate 

partnerships with fair housing and cultural community organizations in 

furtherance of the Commission’s purpose. 

 

(K) In accordance with the ordinance amending Article III, Division 8 of Chapter 2 of 

the City Code, as adopted by the City Council on January 21, 2003, to perform 

other duties as necessary to enforce the powers assigned it in accordance with 

Article IV, the Fair Housing Ordinance of the City of Winston-Salem, of Chapter 

38 of the City Code. 

 

The Fair Housing Ordinance makes it unlawful for an owner or any other person 

engaging in a real estate transaction, or for a real estate broker or salesman to 

discriminate because of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex, against a person or a 

person residing with that person or of friends or associates of that person. The Federal 

Fair Housing Law was amended on March 12, 1989, to include handicapped and families 

with children as protected classes under the law. These are now included in the 

Winston-Salem Fair Housing Ordinance. 

 

The Commission has four other standing committees -- Community Relations, Hispanic 

Relations, Student Relations, and Interfaith.  The Community Relations Committee 

duties are to develop programs to enhance cultural exchange, such as Beyond Soul and 

Salsa; Hispanic Relations partners with Hispanic organizations to develop outreach for 

and to educate the Hispanic community, such as Fiesta; Student Relations develops 

programs to engage the youth in leadership and civil rights education and training, such 

as the annual awards banquet; the Interfaith Committee networks with civic 

organizations and churches across religious denomination lines to develop unifying 

programs, community education, and special projects, such as the Martin Luther King Jr. 

Noonday Observance.   

 

Although these committees must be chaired by a Human Relations Commissioner, 

MEMBERSHIP ON ANY OF THE HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION’S COMMITTEES IS 

OPEN TO ALL INTERESTED RESIDENT(S) WHO RESIDE IN THE CITY.  

-60-

G-4.      DRAFT



Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015----2016201620162016                                                                                                        WinstonWinstonWinstonWinston----Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations 

DepartmentDepartmentDepartmentDepartment    

Page 13 
 

 

Youth Advisory Council (YAC) (See the separate Youth Advisory Council Annual Report) 

In 2010, the City Council designated the Human Relations Department to administer the 

Youth Advisory Council.  The purpose of the Youth Council will be to provide a venue for 

youth between the ages of 14-18 to have an active means of civic engagement in local 

government.  General duties will include, but will not necessarily be limited to: 

 

(1)   Actively promoting the participation of the youth in city government programs and 

activities; 

(2)   Promoting positive human relations among all youth; 

(3)   Providing channels of communication among all ethnic groups; 

(4)   Encouraging the employment of qualified people of all ethnic groups; 

(5)   Encouraging youth to become better trained and qualified for employment 

opportunities; 

(6)   Performing duties consistent with general law as may be assigned it from time to 

time by the City Council; and 

(7)   Performing such other duties as necessary to enforce the powers assigned to it. 

 

As established by the City Council, the Youth Council’s mission is to serve as a conduit 

between city government and their younger constituents. Their core focus is to include 

youth civic engagement by way of community programming, developing youth-oriented 

activities, contributing at least 40 volunteer hours per school year to government-related 

initiatives, projects, and programs, providing information to the community regarding 

topics that are important and relevant to the youth in our community, and to advise the 

City Council and the Human Relations Department on matters that relate to the 

community’s youth population. 

 

The Youth Council is charged with the authority and responsibility of making 

recommendations to the City Council concerning the needs and concerns of community 

youth and the appropriate means by which city government can work with public and 

private agencies to address such needs and concerns.  
 

-61-

G-4.      DRAFT



Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015----2016201620162016                                                                                                        WinstonWinstonWinstonWinston----Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations 

DepartmentDepartmentDepartmentDepartment    

Page 14 
 

 
 

2015-2016 Youth Advisory Council 

 

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION BY PROGRAM 

 

I.        Complaint Resolution: Program Goals (Fair Housing/Landlord Tenant Focus) 

§ Assist citizens with complaints of alleged discrimination or unfair treatment in 

housing, Americans with Disabilities Act issues, and landlord/tenant disputes. 

§ Provide citizens referral assistance to City, county, state, federal and nonprofit 

agencies on complaint issues not related to program descriptions. 

 

Performance Measures: Complaint Resolution 

  
Actual     

2014-2015 

Objective 

2015-2016 

Actual     

2015-2016 

Objective 

2016-

2017 

          

Effectiveness      

Immediate response time to citizens' complaints 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Percentage of complaints resolved 100% 100% 100% 100% 

          

Efficiency      

Percentage of staff time for complaint processing and 

resolution 56% 55% 55% 55% 

          

Workload Indicators      

Housing Discrimination Complaints Processed 12 15 5 10 

Housing Complaints Processed 550 500 550 500 

Employment Complaints Referred to EEOC 0 5 0 5 

Miscellaneous Complaints Processed 145 100 125 100 

 

Performance Measures: Case Investigation 

  
Actual 

2014-2015 

Objective   

2015-2016 

Actual 

2015-2016 

Projected 

2016-2017 

          

Effectiveness      

-62-

G-4.      DRAFT



Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015----2016201620162016                                                                                                        WinstonWinstonWinstonWinston----Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations 

DepartmentDepartmentDepartmentDepartment    

Page 15 
 

Resolve 50% of landlord/tenant cases through mediation 47% 50% 50% 50% 

Close 10% of landlord/tenant cases due to impasse 
 

10% 

 

10% 

 

0% 10% 

Close 75% of landlord/tenant cases within 45 days 80% 75% 84% 75% 

Maintain average investigative time per landlord/tenant case of 

45 days or less 31 days 45 days  13 days 45 days 

Maintain average investigative time per housing discrimination 

case of 100 days or less 95 days 100 days 104 days 100 days 

          

Workload       

Total housing discrimination cases processed 13 27 13 30 

Total landlord/tenant cases processed                                                                76 110 76      100 

Total forums and public discussions held 60 63 60       60 

 

  

  

FY 2015-2016 Complaint Resolution Program Accomplishments 

 

ü  Continued implementation of the fair housing, landlord/tenant-oriented of the Human 

Relations Commission's Strategic Action Plan initiatives. 

 

ü  Continued cross-training with key community partner agencies and departments, such 

as Legal Aid and the Housing Authority of Winston-Salem and Center for 

Homeownership. 

 

ü  Increased staff productivity by continuing to hire student interns to assist staff with 

training and outreach preparation. 

 

ü  Continued the Fair Housing Media Campaign, which is a multi-year radio and television 

campaign advising the community of the complaints resolution services available from 

the department. 

 
ü  Increased fair housing complaint accessibility for the Hispanic community by continuing 

to employ two bilingual Human Relations Specialists and a grant-funded, bilingual Intake 

Specialist as well as continuing with the Tu Comunidad quarterly Spanish television show 

that educates the Hispanic community by highlighting key City services and programs, 

including Fair Housing. 

 

II.      Education and Training: Program Goals (Newsletters, TV Shows, Employee Training       

         Reach Focus) 

§ Sponsor formal and informal education, training and other outreach programs for 

citizens, citizen groups, businesses and others in the areas of fair housing, 

landlord/tenant issues, disability (ADA), cultural diversity, and other human/civil 

rights topics. 

-63-

G-4.      DRAFT



Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015----2016201620162016                                                                                                        WinstonWinstonWinstonWinston----Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations 

DepartmentDepartmentDepartmentDepartment    

Page 16 
 

§ Promote equality of opportunity for all citizens. 
 

Performance Measures: Education and Outreach 

  
Actual 

2015-2016 

Objective 

2015-2016 

Actual 

2015-2016 

Objective 

2016-2017 

          

Effectiveness       

Number of educational programs 60 50 50 50 

Percentage of staff time conducting outreach 25% 20% 40% 20% 

          

Workload        

Number educated 15,865 11,000 10,000 10,000 

 

See Appendix A for Detailed Outline of FY 2015-2016 Education and Outreach. 

 

 

 FY 2015-2016 Key Education and Training Program Accomplishments Summary 

 

ü  Continued substantial equivalency status with the U.S. Department of Housing and 

Urban Development by continued funding of the FHAP (Fair Housing Assistance 

Program) Grant for housing discrimination cases and fair housing training; 

ü  Continued to provide staff for the following Human Relations Subcommittees: 

 New Horizons Fair Housing Committee 

 Student Human Relations Committee 

 Interfaith Committee 

 Community Relations Committee 

Multicultural Relations Committee 

 

 FY 2015-2016 Education and Training Program Key Objectives 
 

 Key objectives include: 

 

ü  Increasing utilization and distribution of newsletters and brochures in public 

education, training and outreach efforts. 

ü  Continuing with the Housing and Urban Development Fair Housing Assistance Program 

Grant to provide expanded programs, projects, and resources in support of fair 

housing and outreach. 

ü  Continuing the Department and Commission's exposure through television and print 

media through the quarterly Nexus Newsletter, the quarterly Nexus Television program 

and the quarterly Tu Comunidad Spanish television program on WSTV-13. 

ü  Continuing with the three strategies to increase and expand outreach to the public in 

areas of race relations and cultural diversity, to be accomplished by: 

-64-

G-4.      DRAFT



Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015----2016201620162016                                                                                                        WinstonWinstonWinstonWinston----Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations 

DepartmentDepartmentDepartmentDepartment    

Page 17 
 

1. Following strategies outlined in the Human Relations Strategic Action Plan. 

2. Ensuring that a Human Relations Specialist is employed who is bilingual with 

special emphasis on the Hispanic community; 

3. Continuing partnerships with at least ten (10) key community agencies. 

 

ü  Continuing current fair housing education and cultural outreach programs, to be 

accomplished by: 

 

1. Working with the Regional Association of Realtors on the American DREAM    

      Weekend, which is an affordable housing partnership initiative; 

2.  Locating and disseminating culturally-based pamphlets and brochures. 

 

ü  Conducting appropriate training for the Human Relations Commission and its 

committees/subcommittees to be accomplished by:  

 

1. Updating orientation materials for all Human Relations Commissioners; 

2. Conducting training for new Human Relations Commissioners, as needed; 

3. Conducting new refresher fair housing training for all Commissioners; 

4. Conducting Hearing Board training as appropriate for Hearing Board members. 

 

ü  Continuing outreach to local high schools with cultural diversity/racial equity forums, 

accomplished by: 

 

1. Encouraging the Student Human Relations Committee assist the local high 

schools with establishing Human Relations Committees at each school; 

2. Continuing the Student Race Relations Forum during Race Equality Week. 

 

ü  Producing a comprehensive cultural diversity training module for City employees that 

emphasizes all of the protected classes under Title VII. 

 

ü  Continuing to increase the media publicity of Human Relations Commission and 

Department programs. 

 
III.    Community Relations: Program Goals 

 

§ Promote equality of opportunity for all citizens. 

§ Study problems of discrimination in any or all fields of human relationships. 

§ Encourage fair treatment and mutual understanding among all ethnic groups in the 

city. 

§ Provide channels of communication among all ethnic groups. 

§ Encourage cultural understanding amongst all ethnic groups. 

§ Encourage youth to become more involved with cultural diversity initiatives. 
 

-65-

G-4.      DRAFT



Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015----2016201620162016                                                                                                        WinstonWinstonWinstonWinston----Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations 

DepartmentDepartmentDepartmentDepartment    

Page 18 
 

Performance Measures: Community Relations 

  
Actual  

2014-2015 

Objective 

2015-2016 

Actual 

2015-2016 

Objective 

2016-2017 

          

Effectiveness       

Number of public forums and discussions 65 50 50 50 

          

Efficiency       

Percentage of staff time with Community Relations 20% 20% 40% 20% 

          

Workload        

Number of attendees 6100 5000 6000 5000 

Community groups contacted 325 300 300 300 

 

See Appendix A for Detailed Outline of FY 2014-2015 Community Relations Programs Accomplishments. 

 

 

 

MAJOR PROGRAM /PROJECT HIGHLIGHTS 

 

Year Round 

Cross Trainings: Human Relations partners with various community agencies, such as the Housing 

Authority of Winston-Salem (HAWS), Legal Aid of Northwest North Carolina, Salvation Army and 

Center for Homeownership and The Adaptables to cross-train regarding services. Approximately 100 

people were trained.  

 

Employee Training: Human Relations partnered for half of this past fiscal year with Human 

Resources to provide cultural diversity and inclusion training to city employees.  

 

Building Integrated Communities Public Meeting:  Local Building Integrated Communities 

stakeholders worked with UNC-Chapel Hill’s Latino Migration Project to host a public meeting for 

service agencies that work with the local immigrant population.  The purpose of the meeting was to 

identify and share needs pertaining to assimilation and barriers as newcomers relocate to Winston-

Salem/Forsyth County. 

 

 

July 

Trust Talks Series:  The Human Relations Commission partnered with the Winston-Salem Police 

Department to initiate a community relations outreach program entitled, “Newcomers Trust Talks.”  

The purpose is to build public trust between our local police department, local newcomers.  There 

were approximately 75 attendees. 

 

August 

I Have a Question About Hinduism:  The Human Relations Commission’s Interfaith Committee 

hosted a panel discussion on Hinduism.  With five panelists and over 25 people in the audience, the 

discussion was rich and very informative about the Hindu culture.   

 

-66-

G-4.      DRAFT



Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015----2016201620162016                                                                                                        WinstonWinstonWinstonWinston----Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations 

DepartmentDepartmentDepartmentDepartment    

Page 19 
 

September 

International Village: International Village is a showcase of our community’s international 

populations via food, dance and arts and crafts.  
 

 
 

Race Equality Week: Human Relations sponsored the annual “Race Equality Week,” as sponsored 

nationally by the National League of Cities. This program consisted of various events such as 

sponsoring Fiesta, the Hispanic League of the Piedmont Triad’s annual festival, in partnership with 

several other City departments. Fiesta attracts between 10,000 and 20,000 visitors yearly.  The 

Department also hosted and coordinated International Village in partnership with the City’s 

Marketing and Communications Department. 

 

 Student Race Relations Forum: The high school Student Race Relations Forum was held at Parkland 

High School.  Students from each of the Winston-Salem/Forsyth County public high schools 

participated in a panel-led discussion to address perceptions and stereotypes based on race and 

culture. 

 

 
 

 

 College Trust Talks:   The Human Relations Commission partnered with the Winston-Salem Police 

Department to initiate a community relations outreach program entitled, “Winston-Salem State 

Trust Talks.”  The purpose is to build public trust between our local police department, Winston-

Salem State University police staff, and students by encouraging open, frank, honest, productive 

dialogue about mutual perceptions, needs, and solutions. There were approximately 100 attendees. 

 

 

December 

Trust Talks Series:  The Human Relations Commission partnered with the Winston-Salem Police 

Department to initiate a community relations outreach program entitled, “Trust Talks.”  The 

purpose is to build public trust between our local police department and community members.  

-67-

G-4.      DRAFT



Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015----2016201620162016                                                                                                        WinstonWinstonWinstonWinston----Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations 

DepartmentDepartmentDepartmentDepartment    

Page 20 
 

There were approximately 60 attendees. 

 

March for Homeless Children: The Human Relations Department sponsored its 13th Annual March 

for Homeless Children as part of the Winston-Salem Holiday Parade. 

 
 

Open House: The Commission hosted its annual holiday “Open House” at City Hall. Commissioners, 

City officials, and Human Relations staff met and greeted the public while celebrating the 37th 

anniversary of the Human Relations Commission. Approximately 250 people attended. 

 
 

January 

MLK Helping Hands Day:  The Human Relations Department helped lead a city wide employee 

initiative with employees giving back to the community.  In honor of Martin Luther King, Jr. the 

employees partnered with area community agencies to volunteer their time.  Over 200 employees 

participated in this inaugural year of a very successful program. 

 

Martin Luther King, Jr. Young Dreamers Award: The Human Relations Commission honored Young 

Dreamers Award recipients for the third year in a row during the televised Winston-Salem City 

Council meeting. The award recognizes residents, aged 18-40, who are up-and-coming social change 

agents in the community and embody the principles of Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr.   

 

 
 

Martin Luther King Breakfast with The Chronicle:  The Human Relations Commission was a sponsor 

for The Chronicles Martin Luther King Breakfast.  This free breakfast and program served over 1000 

community members. 

 
 

February 

36th Annual Human Relations Student Awards Banquet: The 36th Annual Human Relations Student 

-68-

G-4.      DRAFT



Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015----2016201620162016                                                                                                        WinstonWinstonWinstonWinston----Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations 

DepartmentDepartmentDepartmentDepartment    

Page 21 
 

Awards Banquet was held at the Twin City Quarter. The banquet honored youth who made 

significant contributions to the community in the area of human relations and human rights. 

Approximately 600 persons attended and was later televised on WSTV-13.    

 
 

Black History Month- Showcase of Song:  In celebration of Black History Month, the Winston-Salem 

Human Relations Commission sponsored the fourth annual “Showcase of Song: An African-American 

Cultural Celebration,” at the Old Salem Visitor’s Center. There were approximately 250 people in 

attendance from across the Triad. 

 

 
 

March 

Women’s History Month:  The Human Relations Commission celebrated Women’s History Month 

with a new program called “The Modern Woman:  Who is She?”   With six panelists and led by a 

Human Relations Commissioner, the event provoked great dialogue and conversation.  In 

partnership with Salem College, there were around 35 people in attendance.   

-69-

G-4.      DRAFT



Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015----2016201620162016                                                                                                        WinstonWinstonWinstonWinston----Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations 

DepartmentDepartmentDepartmentDepartment    

Page 22 
 

 

 

April 

Fair Housing Month: The Human Relations Commission observed “Fair Housing Month” throughout 

the city. The month-long Fair Housing Month celebration included the 11th Annual Fair and 

Affordable Housing Summit, at which housing industry professionals throughout Forsyth County 

gathered to discuss housing discrimination and the overall state of housing in the community. 

Approximately 130 individuals attended this program. This program was later televised on WSTV-13.  

Additional activities included the Fair Housing Month Kick-Off and Veterans Homeless Connect. 

 

 

 
 

May 

Trust Talks Series:  The Human Relations Commission partnered with the Winston-Salem Police 

-70-

G-4.      DRAFT



Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015----2016201620162016                                                                                                        WinstonWinstonWinstonWinston----Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations 

DepartmentDepartmentDepartmentDepartment    

Page 23 
 

Department to initiate a community relations outreach program entitled, “Trust Talks.”  The 

purpose is to build public trust between our local police department and community members by 

encouraging open, frank, honest, productive dialogue about mutual perceptions, needs, and 

solutions.  

 

 June 

Juneteenth Festival: The Human Relations Commission, in partnership with several community 

organizations, co-sponsored the Annual Juneteenth Africana Cultural Festival. These events 

educated the community about the history of African-American culture in the community. 

Approximately 2,000 residents attended and participated. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

WINSTON-SALEM HUMAN RELATIONS DEPARTMENT 

2016-2017 OUTLINE OF GOALS 
 
For the fiscal year of 2016-2017, the goals of the Winston-Salem Human Relations Department will 

focus on the following ten goals: 

 

1. To maintain the Fair Housing Media Campaign in order to advertise fair housing laws as well as 

department and commission events/programs on the Internet, television, radio, and print 

media; 

 

2. To continue the International Village Cultural Festival during September (Cultural Diversity 

Month) each fall for the citizens of Winston-Salem; 

 

-71-

G-4.      DRAFT



Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015----2016201620162016                                                                                                        WinstonWinstonWinstonWinston----Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations 

DepartmentDepartmentDepartmentDepartment    

Page 24 
 

3. To continue to serve as a resource for City employees for comprehensive, substantive cultural 

diversity and inclusion training materials in partnership with the Human Resources 

Department; 

 

4. To report on Phase II of the Fair Housing Testing Program via the Human Relations 

Commission and the Fair Housing Center of Legal Aid of North Carolina that will aid in 

affirmatively furthering fair housing laws, as per HUD’s mandate; 

 

5. To continue the Alternative Residential Mediation program, in partnership with the Forsyth 

County District Court and the City Attorney’s Office, in order to provide a free, expedient, non-

litigious option for landlord/tenant complaints; 

 

6. To continue administering the Limited English Proficiency policy and procedure guide in 

satisfaction of federal requirements that are imposed on recipients of federal funding and to 

assure fair and equitable treatment throughout the community; 

 

7. To continue the expanded focus on the international community, particularly the Hispanic 

Community,  in the inclusion of services (to include fair housing, landlord/tenant, and race 

relations) via the UNC- Chapel Hill Building Integrated Communities’ Latino Migration Project 

and the continuation of the Tu Comunidad Spanish-language television show on WSTV-13; 

 

8. To continue as a partner of the Winston-Salem Police Department in holding Trust Talks to 

facilitate a trusting relationship between the community and police; 

 

9. To encourage the City to sponsor events such as the Student Awards Banquet, Fiesta, Cultural 

Diversity Month, Triad Juneteenth, the Fair Housing Summit, Cultural Connections, the American 

DREAM Weekend, and the Martin Luther King, Jr. Young Dreamers program with coordination 

through the Human Relations Department; 

 

10. To continue creative, effective community service leadership programs and projects through the 

Youth Advisory Council and College Advisory Board for positive youth and young adult community 

engagement. 

 

 

 

 

 

WINSTON-SALEM HUMAN RELATIONS DEPARTMENT 

EDUCATION/OUTREACH TRAINING MODULES 

 

In order to satisfy the requirements of HUD’s Fair Housing Assistance Program (FHAP), the 

Commission's Strategic Plan, and the Department's Business and Performance Plans, the 

following training modules have been developed and implemented by the Human Relations 

Department staff: 

 

FAIR HOUSING 

-72-

G-4.      DRAFT



Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015----2016201620162016                                                                                                        WinstonWinstonWinstonWinston----Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations 

DepartmentDepartmentDepartmentDepartment    

Page 25 
 

Audience:                General Public 

Training Time:         Two or four-hour training (for each level after Level 1, the     

                                   preceding levels are prerequisites) 

 

Level 1 Discrimination as defined by the FHA 

Level 2 Tenants’ Rights 

Level 3 HUD/City Complaint Process and Investigative Procedures 

Level 4 Disability Requirements per the FHA and the City Ordinances 

Level 5 Domestic Violence and Fair Housing 

Level 6 Mortgage Lending Practices 

 

LANDLORD/TENANT 

Audience:               General Public  

Training Time:        Two-hour training (for each level after Level 1, the preceding                                                

    levels are prerequisites) 

Level 1 Landlord/Tenant Rights and Responsibilities as per NCGS Chapter 42 

Level 2 City Complaint Process and Investigative Procedures 

Level 3 Domestic Violence and Fair Housing 

Level 4 Disability Requirements 

 

DIVERSITY 

Audience: City of Winston-Salem Employees; General Public 

Training Time: One to Four-hour training, as needed 

 

Level 1        Cultural Diversity and Inclusion Training 

Level 2        Unlawful Workplace Harassment Training  

Level 3        Race Relations Training 

 Level 4        Sexual Harassment Training 

 Level 5        Inter-Generational Training 
  

-73-

G-4.      DRAFT



Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015----2016201620162016                                                                                                        WinstonWinstonWinstonWinston----Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations 

DepartmentDepartmentDepartmentDepartment    

Page 26 
 

Human Relations Budget Summary 

EXPENDITURES BY PROGRAM  
Actual     

2015-2015 

Budget 

2015-2016 

Adopted 

2016-2017 

Percent 

Change 

General Fund     

Human Relations $350,929 $367,670 $446,420 21.4% 

Contributions to Mediation Services of Forsyth County $13,700 $7,500 $7,500 0.0% 

Subtotal $364,629 $375,170 $453,920 21.0% 

 

Grants Fund     

Fair Housing Assistance Program Grants $77,899 $34,510 $33,610 -2.6% 

Fair Housing Information Fair (Fair Housing Summit and 

American Dream Weekend) $13,275 $14,000 $16,000 14.3% 

Fiesta $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 0% 

Subtotal $91,174 $51,510 $52,610 2.1% 

 

Total Expenditures by Program $455,803 $426,680 $506,530 18.7% 

RESOURCES BY TYPE 

 

Actual     

2014-2015 

Budget 

2015-2016 

Adopted 

2016-2017 

Percent 

Change 

General Fund     

Human Relations Banquet Ticket Sales $28,649 $15,000 $15,000 0.0% 

Other General Fund Resources $335,980 $360,170 $438,920 21.9% 

Subtotal General Fund Resources $364,629 $375,170 $453,920 21.0% 
 

Grants Fund/Fair Housing Enforcement     

U.S. Dept. of Housing and Urban Development $91,323 $50,000 $50,000 0% 

Fair Housing Event Sponsorships $5,625 $1,510 $2,610 72.8% 

NC State Grant 0 0 0 N/A 

Subtotal Grants Fund Resources $96,948 $51,510 $52,610 2.1% 

 

Total Resources by Type $461.577 $426,680 $506,530 18.7% 

 

POSITIONS 

 

Actual     

2013-2014 

Budget 

2014-2015 

Adopted 

2015-2016 

Percent 

Change 

Full-Time 5 5 5 0 

BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS 
Ø  Funding for conflict resolution services provided by Mediation Services of Forsyth County is budgeted at $7,500, an 

increase of 5.5% from FY 2014-2015. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-74-

G-4.      DRAFT



Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015----2016201620162016                                                                                                        WinstonWinstonWinstonWinston----Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations 

DepartmentDepartmentDepartmentDepartment    

Page 27 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE CITY COUNCIL 

 

The Human Relations Commission in adopting its new Strategic Plan recognizes the need to 

continue fostering an environment that initiates and supports multiracial and multi-ethnic 

dialogue and understanding in our community.  We respectfully request your support of the 

following recommendations: 

 

1. The Human Relations Commission recognizes the importance of building and 

maintaining effective lines of communication between city government and the 

community.  By improving the dialogue with our diverse community groups, city 

government can ensure that the City of Winston-Salem fosters an environment that 

is conducive for an atmosphere in which everyone is treated fairly. In carrying out its 

strategic goals, the Commission will increase its outreach efforts in all areas of the 

community and will seek input from the City Council on issues or concerns in their 

respective wards.  We ask that the City Council support the Commission’s goals in 

this effort. 

 

2. We ask that the City Council support the Commission’s goal of building a stronger 

relationship with City officials and City commissions. 

 

3. We ask that the City Council support the Human Relations Department as it 

provides a bilingual staff member who can assist with proactive outreach measures 

that will facilitate building positive relations between the City government and our 

rapidly increasing Hispanic population. 

 

The Commission appreciates the continual support it has received from the City Council. 

Your continued support will only strengthen the Human Relations Commission efforts in 

working on behalf of all the citizens in Winston-Salem. 

 

-75-

G-4.      DRAFT



Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015----2016201620162016                                                                                                        WinstonWinstonWinstonWinston----Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations 

DepartmentDepartmentDepartmentDepartment    

Page 28 
 

 
 

2015 City Council 

Mayor: Allen Joines     City Council: Vivian H. Burke, Mayor Pro Tempore, Northeast Ward;  

Denise D. Adams, North Ward; Dan Besse, Southwest Ward; Robert C. Clark, West Ward;  

Molly Leight, South Ward;  Jeff MacIntosh, Northwest Ward;  

Derwin L. Montgomery, East Ward;  James Taylor, Jr., Southeast Ward  

 

 

RELATED BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
2014-2015 COLLEGE ADVISORY BOARD 

Name School 

Patrick Frantz Forsyth Tech 

Ella Hill Salem College 

Alisha Giri Wake Forest 

Lauren Formica  Wake Forest 

Keva Kreeger Salem College 

Erica Shepperd-Debnam Salem College 

Rae-Ling Lee Wake Forest 

George O. Bailey IV Winston-Salem State 

Derrick Mobley Winston-Salem State 

Roby D. Lovett Forsyth Tech 

Chris Reyes Forsyth Tech 

 

 

2014-2015 HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION 

First Name Last Name Position 

Nora Baker Chairperson 

Timothy Auman  

Michael  Clinton Vice-Chairperson, Community Relations 

-76-

G-4.      DRAFT



Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015----2016201620162016                                                                                                        WinstonWinstonWinstonWinston----Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations 

DepartmentDepartmentDepartmentDepartment    

Page 29 
 

Committee Chair 

Sonny Haynes  

Robert Leak III 

New Horizons Fair Housing Committee 

Chair 

Barbara Saulpaugh Multi-Cultural Relations Committee Chair 

Manjunath Shamanna Interfaith Committee Chair 

Hon. Ben Tennille, Ret Hearing Board Chair 

Eusebio Velez Student Relations Committee Chair 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
2014-2015 YOUTH ADVISORY COUNCIL 

First Name Last Name School 

Oryn Swaso Mt. Tabor 

Dalia Namak Parkland High 

Darian Thompson Parkland High 

Quentin McCullough* Parkland High 

Zach Skillings Parkland High 

Bryan Christ Forsyth Country Day 

Sara Lane* Forsyth Country Day 

Anusha Doshi Reagan 

Aditi Pilani* Reagan 

Ryan Carter Walkertown High 

Devika Ghosh Atkins 

Victoria Rivera East Forsyth 

Andrew "Drew" Lischke* East Forsyth 

Harley Magno* Early College 

Isabella Rico Early College 

Robert Ganzert* Bishop 

Nicholas Dioli Bishop 

David "Gabe" Herman* Paisley 

Kirsten Smith Paisley 

Carolina Juanico-Cela Glenn 

Kenhoor Saur* Glenn 

Corrina Parriman* North 

Keyla Lewis-Fleming* W-S Prep 

Zamier Gillespie W-S Prep 

-77-

G-4.      DRAFT



Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015----2016201620162016                                                                                                        WinstonWinstonWinstonWinston----Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations 

DepartmentDepartmentDepartmentDepartment    

Page 30 
 

Dakota Pinckney Carver High School 

Logan Short Calvary Baptist Day School 

Ross Hickman Calvary Baptist Day School 

Jabrea Jackson* Kennedy High School 

Abdull Mosley Kennedy High School 

*Denotes student serving as alternate 
 

 

 

-78-

G-4.      DRAFT



Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015Annual Report 2015----2016201620162016                                                                                                        WinstonWinstonWinstonWinston----Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations Salem Human Relations 

DepartmentDepartmentDepartmentDepartment    

Page 31 
 

APPENDICES 

 
A.   FY 2015-2016 Education and Outreach Report 

 

B.   FY 2014-2016 Commission Strategic Action Plan  

 

C.   Compassionate Winston-Salem Plan of Action 

 

  

 

 

     

 

 

 

 

-79-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

-80-



TITLE OF OUTREACH  DATE TOPIC DISCUSSED # ATTENDEES

FH/LT Training 7/8/2015 Fair Housing Training 3

Landura Management Conference 7/15/2015 Fair Housing 15

Immigrant Trust Talks 7/21/2015 Fair Housing 70

Fair Housing Training with CityLink 8/3/2015 Fair Housing Training 10

South East International Community Day 8/8/2015 Fair Housing Outreach 75

FH/LT Training 8/12/2015 Fair Housing Training 1

Crosby Scholar Picnic 8/14/2015 Fair Housing Outreach 150

Boston Round-Up 8/15/2015 Fair Housing Outreach 200

Por Una Vida Mejor, Que Pasa Festival 8/16/2015 Fair Housing Outreach 250

YAC Orientation 8/20/2015 Fair Housing Outreach 34

CAB Orientation 8/20/2015 Fair Housing Outreach 6

HRC Retreat 8/21/2015 HRC Business 16

Building Integrated Communities 8/27/2015 HRC Business/Fair Housing Outreach 18

I Have a Question About Hinduism 8/27/205 Fair Housing/Community Outreach 26

FH/LT Training 9/9/2015 Fair Housing Training 1

International Village 9/12/2015 Community Outreach 1000

Mi Casa Community Festival 9/19/2015 Fair Housing/Community Outreach 60

WSSU Trust Talks 9/22/2015 Community Outreach 80

Fiesta 9/13/2015 Hispanic Outreach 1,500

Race Relations Forum 9/25/2015 Race Relations 151

Training for Goodwill Case Managers 10/2/2015 Fair Housing Training 12

Forsyth Tech New Global Southerner (Panel) 10/13/2015 Fair Housing Outreach 40

FH/LT Training 10/14/2015 Fair Housing Training 1

Mayor's Council for Persons with Disabilities Annual Luncheon 10/16/2015 Fair Housing/Community Outreach 45

Pride Festival 10/17/2015 Fair Housing Outreach 1000

Diwali Indian Program 10/24/2015 Community Outreach 100

Building Integrated Communities 10/29/2015 Immigrant Outreach 18

Fair Housing Training with Family Services 11/4/2015 Fair Housing Training 8

Family Services Networking Fair 11/5/2015 Fair Housing Outreach 35

New Employee Training 11/6/2015 Discrimination policy 18

Sister Cities International Dinner 11/7/2015 Fair Housing/Community Outreach 50

FH/LT Training 11/11/2015 Fair Housing Training 1

Fair Housing Training for Veterans 11/14/2015 Fair Housing Training 13

March for Homeless Children 12/5/2015 Community Outreach 45

FH/LT Training 12/9/2015 Fair Housing Training 1

World Relief Meeting 12/9/2015 Immigrant Outreach 25

Translation for Hispanic Pastor 12/15/2015 Hispanic Outreach 5

Open House 12/18/2015 Community Outreach 250

FH/LT Training 1/13/2016 Fair Housing Training 2

MLK Helping Hands News Conference 1/14/2016 Community Outreach 35

MLK Helping Hands Day 1/15/2016 Community Outreach 200

MLK Breakfast 1/18/2016 Community Outreach 1200

City of Winston-Salem Human Relations Department

Outreach and Training Report

FY 2015-2016

-81-

G-4.      DRAFT



TITLE OF OUTREACH  DATE TOPIC DISCUSSED # ATTENDEES

City of Winston-Salem Human Relations Department

Outreach and Training Report

FY 2015-2016

MLK Young Dreamers Award 1/19/2016 Community Outreach

HRC Meeting 1/28/2016 HRC Business 11

New Horizons Fair Housing Committee 2/3/2016 FH Summit Planning 9

Building Integrated Communities Meeting 2/10/2016 Immigrant Outreach 17

FH/LT Training 2/10/2016 Fair Housing Training 1

New Horizons Fair Housing Committee 2/17/2016 FH Summit Planning 9

Fair Housing and Refugee Panel 2/17/2016 Immigrant Outreach 65

Student Human Relations Banquet 2/18/2016 Student Relations Outreach 550

Black History Month Showcase of Song 2/27/2016 Community Outreach 250

Fair Housing Training for BCS Holdings 2/29/2016 Fair Housing Training 16

Fair Housing Training for BCS Holdings 3/1/2016 Fair Housing Training 22

New Horizons Fair Housing Committee 3/1/2016 FH Summit Planning 10

Building Integrated Communities Meeting 3/2/2016 Immigrant Outreach 15

FH/LT Training 3/9/2016 Fair Housing Training 3

World Relief 3/9/2016 Immigrant Outreach 22

CWSU Presentation 3/10/2016 Fair Housing Training 24

Poverty Thought Force World Café 3/17/2016 Community Outreach 75

Triad Vets Outreach 3/24/2016 Fair Housing/Community Outreach 15

HRC Meeting 3/24/2016 HRC Business 14

Women's History Month Panel 3/30/2016 Community Outreach 28

Fair Housing Month Kick-off 4/1/2016 Fair Housing Outreach 35

Everyone Matters Day 4/2/2016 Community Outreach 1000

Cross Training with The Adaptables 4/5/2016 Fair Housing Training 13

New Horizons Fair Housing Committee 4/6/2016 FH Summit Planning 8

Creek Week-El Pastor Hispanic Outreach 4/6/2016 Hispanic Outreach 16

Cross Training with CBD 4/7/2016 Fair Housing Training 12

Speas Elementary International Festival 4/8/2016 Immigrant Outreach 1,000

College Summit 4/9/2016 Community Outreach/CAB Activity 35

Fair Housing Training at Salem College 4/13/2016 Fair Housing Training 18

FH/LT Training 4/13/2016 Fair Housing Training 2

Project Homeless and Health Connect 4/15/2016 Fair Housing Outreach 150

Fair Housing Training at Salem College 4/20/2016 Fair Housing Training 16

Fair and Affordable Housing Summit 4/21/2016 Fair Housing Outreach 125

Forsyth Tech Newcomers FH/LT Training 4/25/2016 Fair Housing Training 15

International Village Planning Meeting 4/26/2016 Community Outreach 15

YAC Meeting 4/26/2016 Fair Housing Outreach 15

Building Integrated Communities Meeting 4/27/2016 Immigrant Outreach 15

New Horizons Fair Housing Committee 5/4/2016 FH Summit Planning 10

India Fest 5/9/2015 Community Outreach 1

FH/LT Training 5/10/2016 Fair Housing Training 1

Fair Housing Training with City Link 5/10/2016 Fair Housing Training 4

International Village Planning Meeting 5/10/2016 Community Outreach 13

-82-

G-4.      DRAFT



TITLE OF OUTREACH  DATE TOPIC DISCUSSED # ATTENDEES

City of Winston-Salem Human Relations Department

Outreach and Training Report

FY 2015-2016

Fair Housing State Meeting-Hispanic Outreach Training 5/11/2016 Fair Housing Training 15

In Good Company Dinner 5/11/2016 Community Outreach 125

Greek Festival 5/13/2016 Community Outreach 6

Building Integrated Communities Meeting 5/18/2016 Immigrant Outreach 16

Race Relations Follow-Up Forum 5/18/2016 Community Outreach 70

Community Trust Talks 5/19/2016 Community Outreach 32

HRC Meeting 5/19/2016 HRC Business 10

International Center at Forsyth Tech 5/20/2016 Hispanic Outreach 25

India Fest 5/21/2016 Immigrant Outreach/Community 650

HUD Community Training on AFFH 6/2/2016 Fair Housing Training 40

International Village Planning Meeting 6/7/2016 Community Outreach 15

World Relief 6/8/2016 Immigrant Outreach 35

FH/LT Training 6/8/2016 Fair Housing Training 1

Fair Housing Training with Realtor's Association 6/14/2016 Fair Housing Training

Building Integrated Communities Meeting 6/15/2016 Immigrant Outreach

Juneteenth Luncheon 6/16/2016 Community Outreach

Juneteenth Festival 6/20/2015 Fair Housing Outreach

International Village Planning Meeting 6/21/2016 Community Outreach

Trust Talks 6/28/2016 Community Outreach

11485

-83-

G-4.      DRAFT



TITLE OF OUTREACH  DATE TOPIC DISCUSSED # ATTENDEES

City of Winston-Salem Human Relations Department

Outreach and Training Report

FY 2015-2016

-84-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

 

 

The Human Relations Commission’s  

Plan of Action for  

Compassionate Winston-Salem 

Below represents a possible hours of compassionate community programming service opportunities as well as 

guided acts of kindness, caring, and compassion.  This Plan of Action is subject to ongoing updates. 

MONTHLY THEMES SUGGESTED COMPASSIONATE 
PROGRAMMING ACTIVITIES 

GUIDED ACTS OF KINDNESS, 
CARING, AND COMPASSION 

August  
Compassionate Kick-Off 
Art Appreciation Month 
 

 Reception 

 Press Conference 

 Volunteer with the Arts Council 
 

 Reception 

 Press Conference 

 Create art and share it with friends 
 

September  
Compassionate Winston-Salem Month 
Cultural Awareness Month  
Hispanic Heritage Month 
 

 Anti-Bullying Walk (2 hours) 

 High School Race Relations Forum 
(1.5 hours) 

 Fiesta (1.5 hours) 

 International Village (2 hours) 

 Susan G. Komen Foundation Race 
for the Cure 

 

 Mentor a student  

 Volunteer at  
Big Brothers/Big Sisters 

October 
Domestic Violence Month 
Disability Awareness Month 
Customer Service Month 
 

 Day of Unity (1 hour) 

 Volunteer Training (2 hours) 

 Walk-A-Mile-in-Her Shoes (2 hours) 

 Anti-Bullying Campaign (4 hours) 

 African-Americans and Domestic 
Violence (5 hours) 

 Fundraiser for a United Way Agency 
(2 hours) 

 Support the Mayor’s Council for 
Persons with Disabilities Annual 
Luncheon (2 hours) 

 Volunteer at Industries for the Blind 
(2 hours) 

 Volunteer at The Enrichment Center 
(2 hours) 

 Walk in the Crop Hunger Walk  

 Walk in the Heart and Stroke Walk  

 Participate in the Pride Parade 
(1 hour) 

 Mentor a student  

 Volunteer at Big Brothers/Big 
Sisters 

 Volunteer with  
Rachel’s Challenge 

 Write a commendation note for 
good customer service 

November 
Month of Thankfulness 
 

 Volunteer at Samaritan Ministries  
(2 hours) 

 Volunteer at Second Harvest Food 
Bank (2 hours)  

 Volunteer at Big Brothers/Big Sisters  

 Support the Muscular Dystrophy 
Association Lock-Up 

 Salvation Army Christmas Program  

 Department of Social Services 
Adopt-A-Family Program 
 

 Provide rides for voting 

 Pay It Forward with a free meal 

 Sponsor a food drive 

 Adopt a veteran 

 Mentor a student  

 Leave extra change in a tip jar 

 Invite an elderly neighbor to dinner 
 

-85-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

 

December  
Homelessness Awareness 
 
 

 March for Homeless Children 
(1 hour) 

 Volunteer at the Bethesda Center 
(2 hours) 

 Volunteer at ESR (2 hours) 

 Donate to Project HOPE  
 

 Sponsor a clothing drive for 
homeless children 

 Mentor a student  

 Volunteer at Big Brothers/Big 
Sisters 

January 
Race Relations Awareness 
 

 Young Dreamers Award Council 
Mtg. (2 hours) 

 MLK Annual Breakfast (2 hours) 

 MLK Noon Hour Commemoration  
(2 hours) 

 WSSU/WFU MLK Program (2 hours) 
 

 Mentor a student  

 Volunteer at Big Brothers/Big 
Sisters 

 Volunteer covering a needy 
person’s heating bill 

February 
Black History Month  
Human Relations Month  
Teen Violence and Abuse Awareness 
Month 
 

 Human Relations Student Awards 
Banquet (4 hours) 

 Showcase of Song (2 hours) 

 Volunteer with Family Services to 
distribute information regarding 
Teen Violence and Abuse (2 hours) 
 

 Mentor a student  

 Hold the door for others 

 Give up a seat for others 

 Volunteer at Big Brothers/Big 
Sisters 

 Volunteer with Rachel’s Challenge 
 

March 
Women’s History Month 
 

 Attend at least one special program 
at Salem College (2 hours)  

 Donate to Dress for Success for 
needy professional women 

 Mentor a student  

 Volunteer at Big Brothers/Big 
Sisters 

 Have a Prom Dress Drive 
 

April 
Fair Housing Month 
Prevention of Cruelty to Animals 
Month 
 

 Fair and Affordable Housing Summit 
(3 hours) 

 Support the Spanish Nite 
scholarship gala (4 hours) 

 Volunteer at the Senior Services (2 
hours) 

 Volunteer with Keep Winston-Salem 
Beautiful (2 hours) 

 Volunteer at the Forsyth County 
Animal Shelter (2 hours) 

 Pick random yards to rake 

 Pick random yards to mow 

 Adopt a Street 

 Clean sweep random 
neighborhoods 

 Plant flowers for the elderly and/or 
disabled 

 Organize a group to clean a stream 

 Donate food to a local animal 
shelter 

 Rescue a dog or cat 

May 
Interfaith/Jewish American Heritage 
Month 
National Foster Care Month  
National Asian Pacific Islander 
American Month 
National Teacher Appreciation Month 
 

 Attend a service at a local temple  
(2 hours) 

 Attend the Greek Festival  
(4 hours) 

 

 Organize a Mother’s Day program 
at Senior Services  

 Volunteer at Big Brothers/Big 
Sisters 

 Thank a teacher 
 

June 
Inclusion/LGBT Pride Month 
 

 Attend a PFLAG meeting (2 hours) 

 Participate in the Juneteenth 
Festival (4 hours) 
 

 Volunteer at a community garden 

 Provide free car washes and 
donate the proceeds 

July 
Park and Recreation Month 

 Volunteer at a local park or 
recreation center 

 Sponsor a back-to-school  drive for 
school supplies for needy children 

 

-86-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

 1 

  

 

 
 

 H um an RelationsH um an RelationsH um an RelationsH um an Relations    

Departm entDepartm entDepartm entDepartm ent    

 

Strategic Action Plan  

2014-2016 

 

 

Nora Baker                

Human Relations Commission Chairperson  

 

Wanda Allen-Abraha, JD               

Human Relations Department Director 

 

 

 

 

Updated:  August 31, 2016 
Winston-Salem Human Relations Commission and Department 

 

-87-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

 2 

Strategic Action Plan 

2014-2016 

 
Vision: The creation of a city-wide environment that is a place where everyone is treated 

fairly.  

 

Mission: The mission of the Winston-Salem Human Relations Commission 

(“WSHRC/HRD”) is to educate, create, facilitate, promote, anticipate, study, and recommend 

programs, projects, feedback, and actions for the elimination of discrimination in any and all 

fields of human relationships. 

 

Duties: The duties of the Commission are to: 

 

a. study problems of discrimination in any or all fields of human relationships and 

encourage fair treatment and mutual understanding among all ethnic groups in the 

city; 

 

b. promote equality of opportunity for all citizens; 

 

c. provide channels of communication among all ethnic groups; 

 

d. encourage the employment of qualified people of all ethnic groups; 

 

e. encourage youth to become better trained and qualified for employment 

opportunities; 

 

f. anticipate and discover those practices and customs most likely to create 

animosity and unrest among racial and ethnic groups and by consultation seek a 

solution as these problems arise or as anticipated;  

 

g. hold such meetings as the Commission may deem necessary or proper to assist in 

carrying out its functions;  

 

h. make recommendations to the City Council for action it deems necessary to the 

furtherance of harmony among racial and ethnic groups in the City; and to 

perform such other duties consistent with the general law as may be assigned it 

from time to time by the City Council; and, 

 

____________________________ 

 
 1. For purposes of this document, the Winston-Salem Human Relations Commission shall be referred to as “the 

Commission;” the Winston-Salem Human Relations Department shall be referred to as “the Department:’ and the 

Commission and the Department shall be referred to jointly as “WSHR.” 

 

-88-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

 3 

 

 

i. implement the provisions of the Winston-Salem Fair Housing Ordinance that 

makes it unlawful for an owner or any other person engaging in a real estate 

transaction, or for a real estate broker or salesperson to discriminate because of 

race, color, religion, national origin, or sex, against a person or a person residing 

with that person or of friends or associates of that person; and mentally or 

physically challenged persons and families with children. 

 

Strategic Focus Areas: The strategic focus areas are in concert with the vision, mission and 

duties of the Commission. 

 

I – Community Presence and Image 

 

As a leadership entity, the Commission will be capable of: 

 

a. creating and promoting a citywide environment that is a place where everyone is 

treated fairly; 

 

b. fostering and facilitating communication, dialogue, and collaboration among all 

people; and, 

 

c. studying and taking a stance on any issue effecting human relations in the 

community-at-large. 

 

II – Community Action 

 

The Commission will be capable of: 

 

a. researching and anticipating problems of discrimination in all fields of human 

relationships for all people in Winston-Salem; 

 

b. identifying practices and customs that have the potential to create animosity and 

unrest among all groups; 

 

c. educating the community-at-large on all laws against discrimination, and their 

rights therein; 

 

d. seeking solutions to issues effecting all human relations in the community-at-

large; 

 

e. providing and promoting opportunities as necessary for people to voice their 

concerns, ideas, and solutions to better the City; and, 

 

-89-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

 4 

f. facilitating and preparing young adults for leadership roles related to the 

community and to the Commission’s mission. 

 

 

III – Commission Infrastructure 

  

The Commission maintains an infrastructure that enhances the effectiveness of its 

vision and mission through: 

 

a. a standing committee structure designed to address issues either established by 

Ordinance, deemed necessary by the Commission, or identified by the 

community; 

 

b. periodic informative updates and recommendations to and inclusion of the 

City Manager, City Council, and the Mayor as requested, necessary, and/or 

assigned; 

 

c. annual appearance before the City Council to provide information on the pulse 

of the community-at-large; 

 

d. preparation of an annual report on Commission programs, projects, and 

activities related to the vision and mission; and 

 

e. active and ongoing communication between the Commission and Human 

Relations Staff involving advisement and technical assistance on all matters 

before the Commission. 

 

Standing Committees: The work of the Commission is carried out through standing 

committees and any ad hoc committees appointed by the Commission. Standing Committees 

consist of a Chairperson, Commissioners, and interested members of the community-at-large, 

with the exception of the Hearing Board, which consists of Commissioners only. There are 

currently seven standing committees, which are: 
 

Community Relations  

Executive  

Hearing Board  

Interfaith Relations  

Multicultural Relations  

New Horizons Fair Housing  

Student Human Relations  
 

  

 

 

-90-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

 5 

Strategic Goals and Objectives by Focus Areas 
 

 

Goal(s) 

 

Objectives/Strategies 

 

Responsible 

Committee 

and/or Persons 

 

Time Frame for 

Reporting 

 or Completion 

 

I-PROGRAM 

PRIORITIES 
   

 

1.   Landlord/Tenant 

       Mediation Program 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1a Consult with city officials 

and administrators for L/T 

referrals and training needs. 

 

 

1b Explore ways to convey 

ARM program information 

to landlords prior to the 

court filing date for pre-

complaint mediation. 

 

1c Continue partnering with 

Board of Realtors. 

 

 

Exec. 

Comm./Staff 

 

 

 

Exec. 

Comm./Staff 

 

 

 

Exec. Comm., 

Partners 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

-91-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

 6 

2.   Enforce Fair Housing          

Ordinance 

2a Continue and expand fair 

housing advertising/outreach 

to protected classes of 

persons who are under-

represented in case 

inventory. 

 

2b Continue partnership 

with Board of Realtors for 

Fair Housing Summit  

 

2c Continue timely intake, 

investigations, mediations, 

hearings, and enforcement 

 

2d Conduct and conclude 

Phase II of fair housing 

testing in the community to 

ensure compliance with the 

fair housing ordinance 

 

 

New Horizons 

Comm., Staff 

 

 

New Horizons 

Comm., Staff 

 

HRD Staff/ 

Hearing Board 

 

 

New Horizons 

Comm., Staff 

 

New Horizons 

Comm., Staff 

 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

Annual 

 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

Complete 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-92-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

 7 

3.   Student Programs 3a  Continue Student HR 

Awards Banquet each 

February 

 

 

 

 

 

3b Partner with the Winston-

Salem Youth Advisory 

Council and College 

Advisory Board on at least 

one major program per year 

 

 

3c  Continue redeveloping 

the High School Race 

Relations Forum 

 

 

3d  Incorporate 

Compassionate Winston-

Salem into the Student 

Human Relations Awards 

Banquet 

 

 

Student 

Relations, 

Community 

Relations 

Committees and 

Staff 

 

 

Student 

Relations 

Committee 

 

 

 

Student 

Relations 

Committee and 

staff 

Student 

Relations 

Committee and 

staff 

 

Annual 

 

 

 

 

 

Annual 

 

 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

Complete 

-93-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

 8 

4.   Community 

Awareness 

4a Continue the partnership 

with another department or 

organization for Black 

History month events each 

February 

 

 

4b Continue Cultural 

Awareness Month events 

each Fall 

 

4c Continue the citizen 

award for exemplifying 

MLK principles 

 

 

4d Raise awareness for 

homelessness through 

programs such as the March 

for Homeless Children. 

 

4e. Continue to raise hunger 

awareness. 

Community 

Relations 

Committee and 

Staff 

 

 

Community 

Relations 

Committee 

Interfaith 

Committee 

 

 

Community 

Relations and  

New Horizons 

Committees 

 

Community 

Relations and 

Interfaith 

Annual 

 

 

 

 

Annual 

 

 

Annual 

 

 

Annual 

 

 

 

 

Annual 

II – COMMUNITY 

PRESENCE AND 

IMAGE 

   

1. To continue the 

positive public 

relations marketing 

strategy to increase 

public awareness of 

the role and 

relationship of the 

HRC to the 

community-at-large.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1a Continue exposure in 

English and Spanish on TV 

13, cable, and radio. 

 

1b Maintain HRC web site 

to include HRC calendar and 

newsletter. 

 

1c Pursue having the 

updated L/T outreach videos 

streamed on the website and 

televised on TV-13. 

 

1d Continue the Annual 

HRC Awards banquet each 

February.  

 

Exec. Committee 

and Staff 

 

 

Staff 

 

 

 

 

Staff 

 

 

 

Community and 

Student 

Relations 

Committees 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

Complete 

 

 

Annual 

 

 

 

-94-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

 9 

  

1e  Partner with Police on 

mutual outreach efforts, 

specifically Trust Talks. 

 

 

1f Continue Hispanic 

outreach with Tu 

Comunidad television show 

and newsletter 

 

1g  Continue leading the 

City’s partnership and 

sponsorship of the Fiesta 

Hispanic Festival 

 

1h  Continue International 

Village for international 

community outreach 

 

1i  Continue the I Have a 

Question About…religious 

forum series 

 

1j Continue the Juneteenth 

African Arts Festival 

partnership  

 

 

1k  Continue the Cultural 

Connections protected 

classes outreach movie 

series 

 

 

 

Community 

Relations 

Committee 

 

 

Hispanic 

Relations 

Committee and 

Staff 

 

Hispanic 

Relations 

Committee and 

Staff 

 

Community 

Relations 

Committee and 

Staff 

 

Interfaith 

Committee and 

Staff 

 

Community 

Relations 

Committee and 

Staff 

 

Community 

Relations 

Committee and 

Staff 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

Annual 

 

 

 

Annual 

 

 

 

 

Complete 

 

 

 

Annual 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

2. Build a constructive 

and ongoing 

relationship with City 

Officials and City 

Commissions. 

 

 

2a. Establish and implement 

methods for periodic 

informative contact with 

City Council to educate on 

HRC activities and obtain 

input on wards concerns.  

 

Commissioners 

and Staff 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-95-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

 10 

 

3.   Participate in city 

government-wide 

programs and initiatives 

3a. Continue partnership 

with Community and Bus. 

Dev. Dept. on neighborhood 

outreach, as needed  

 

3b. Act as LEP resource for 

City of Winston-Salem 

 

New Horizons 

Comm., Staff  

 

 

Commissioners 

and Staff 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Goal(s) 

 
Objectives/Strategies 

 
Responsible 

Committee 

and/or Persons 

Time Frame for 

Reporting 

 or Completion 

III – COMMUNITY 

ACTION 

 

1. Foster communication, 

dialogue, and 

collaboration among the 

community-at-large by 

addressing problems, 

rights under the law, and 

the prevention of 

breakdowns in human 

relationships.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1a. Collaborate with various 

city departments, groups and 

entities of the community for 

feedback and information on 

issues, concerns, needs, and 

ideas through public forums, 

town meetings, and open 

houses. Educate on specific 

rights of landlords and 

tenants under fair housing 

law and NC General Statue 

42. 

 

1b. Establish proposed 

citywide cross-cultural/faiths 

organizational events for 

Commissioners and staff to 

actively participate in and/or 

co-sponsor.  

 

1c. Sponsor 2-4 public town 

 

 

 

Commissioners, 

Standing 

Committees, 

 and Staff 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Commissioners,  

Standing 

Committees, 

and Staff 

 

 

 

Commissioners, 

 

 

 

Continual 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Continual 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-96-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

 11 

meetings/forums per year on 

topics of community interest 

or need. 

 

 

 

1d. Create an ad hoc 

committee to possibly 

design a community survey 

of inclusiveness and make 

recommendations to the full 

HRC. 

 

1e. Provide training and 

awareness through 

partnerships with agencies 

serving the LGBTQIA 

community. 

 

Standing 

Committees, 

 and Staff 

Standing 

Committees 

 

Commissioners, 

Standing 

Committees, and 

Staff 

 

 

 

Community 

Relations 

Continual 

 

 

 

 

 

Complete 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

Goal(s) 

 

Objectives/Strategies 

 
Responsible 

Committee 

and/or Persons 

 

Time Frame for 

Reporting 

 or Completion 

 

 

2. Develop partnerships 

with young   

    adults to increase 

leadership  

    potential and 

involvement in   

    human relations issues 

in the City. 

 

 

2a. Partner with the Youth 

Advisory Council and the 

College Advisory Board on 

mutually-relevant issues. 

 

Standing 

Committees 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

3.Ensure equal and fair 

accessibility for persons  

   with disabilities. 

 

3a. Review appropriate 

agency’s methods of 

compliance with laws that 

govern accessibility and 

usability of public places by 

people with disabilities.  

 

3b. Partner with 

organizations that serve 

persons with disabilities to 

establish education and 

New Horizons 

Comm. 

 

 

 

 

 

New Horizons 

Comm. 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

-97-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

 12 

ensure compliance with 

accessibility impediments 

and/or barriers.  

 

 

 

 

  

-98-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

 13 

 

Goal(s) 

 

Objectives/Strategies 

 

Responsible 

Committee 

and/or Persons 

 

Time Frame 

for Reporting 

 or Completion 

 

IV – COMMISSION  

        INFRASTRUCTURE 

 

   

 

1.  Each standing committee 

establishes operating 

procedures. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1a. Review mission 

statement and goals. 

 

1b. Provide progress report 

on committee’s activities  

at each meeting by each 

committee.  

 

1c. Review and update 

committee brochures. 

 

Standing 

Committees 

 

Standing 

Committee 

Chairperson or 

representative 

 

Standing 

Committees 

 

Complete 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

2. Periodic review of 

Strategic Plan to assess 

progress and/or need for 

revisions. 

 

2a. Addressed at the annual 

retreat. 

 

 

Commissioners 

and Staff 

 

Annual 

 

 

  

-99-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

 14 

 

Goal(s) 

 
Objectives/Strategies 

 
Responsible 

Committee 

and/or Persons 

 

Time Frame 

for Reporting 

 or Completion 

 

 

3.  Provide order, structure, 

and teambuilding for 

meetings and the work of the 

Commission.  

 

 

3a. Facilitate order and 

structure of Commission 

work for presentation to the 

full Commission. 

 

3b. Establish one yearly 

“open house.” 

 

3c. Research grants to 

foster the work of the 

Commission.  

 

3d. Establish participation 

in the annual retreat as 

mandatory.  

 

3e. Partner with Triad 

HRCs to share best 

practices 

 

 

Executive 

Committee 

 

 

 

Staff 

 

 

Commissioners 

and Staff 

 

 

Commissioners 

and Staff 

 

 

Community 

Relations 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

Complete 

4. Increase community 

representation and 

numbers as members 

of the Commission. 

 

 

4a. Work with the Mayor to 

identify and select new 

members to the 

Commission representative 

of the community-at-large, 

as needed. 

 

Commissioners 

and Staff 

 

Ongoing 

 

  

-100-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

 15 

Goal(s) 

 
Objectives/Strategies 

 
Responsible 

Committee 

and/or Persons 

 

Time Frame for 

Reporting 

 or Completion 

 

5. Accurate and 

timely reporting 

to the City 

Manager, City 

Council, the 

Mayor, and 

relevant City 

agencies. 

 

5a. Present Annual Report to 

the City Council. 

 

5b. Prepare and distribute 

annual report to appropriate 

audience by October of each 

year and post on City 

website. 

 

 

 

 

Chairperson or 

representative 

 

Staff 

 

 

 

 

Annual 

 

 

Annual 

 

 

 

 

 

-101-

G-4.      DRAFT



 

-102-



 

 

 

 

TO: Mayor Joines and Members of City Council  

FROM: D. Ritchie Brooks, Director of Community and Business 

Development  

DATE: August 31, 2016 

SUBJECT: TURN Area Demonstration Homes Concept 

CC: Lee D. Garrity, City Manager  

Derwick Paige, Assistant City Manager 

Evan Raleigh, Deputy Director of Community and Business 

Development  

 

The TURN program is currently underway and assisting with the rehabilitation of existing 

homes in several neighborhoods.   Many of the neighborhoods selected for TURN are older 

and contain historic architecture and history.  As you know, many of these neighborhoods 

have experienced periods of decline and loss of buildings resulting in a proliferation of 

empty lots.   These empty lots can significantly detract from the character of the 

neighborhoods.   As a primary goal of the TURN program is to stem the deterioration of 

property and neighborhoods, addressing vacant properties in these areas is critical to the 

success of the initiative.  This memo describes a concept for an infill housing program in 

the TURN areas.  

 

When the TURN program was created it was envisioned that funds would be dedicated to 

creating new homes (one in each ward with a TURN neighborhood) that would be of a 

higher standard and quality than the homes generally found in the areas.  The concept is to 

create a partnership with the Forsyth Technical Community College Architectural 

Technology Program for the design of affordable infill housing.  Students enrolled in this 

course learn how to prepare residential plans, elevations, sections and residential working 

drawings that are within accepted architectural standards.  Students that have participated 

in this course have competed in design competitions across the country and won national 

awards for their designs.  The students are a diverse collection of local residents who 

typically try to obtain jobs in the local community after graduating.  The concept would 

involve tasking students enrolled in next fall’s residential design class with developing a 

menu of housing designs in conjunction with representatives from the selected TURN 

neighborhoods.  

  

The Community and Business Development Department, with assistance from the Planning 

and Development Services Department, would develop the specifications for the designs 

including but not limited to: housing specifications, timelines, and identification of the 

specific lots selected designs would be constructed on.  Each student or student group will 

be paired with a local architect or architectural firm that is willing to volunteer to mentor 

the students and to assist with refining the designs and developing construction documents.  

Selected designs would be made available to prospective buyers to choose from.  It is 

anticipated that selected designs will be constructed and sold to first-time homeowners.  

The department will make available all forms of financial assistance including down 

payment assistance and other financing mechanisms.    

 

-103-

G-5.      DRAFT



2 

 

The overarching goal of this initiative is to bring vibrancy, safety, and soundness back to 

our older urban neighborhoods and spark reinvestment in the areas.  Funding for the project 

and construction of homes will be made available from TURN bond funds.  Staff will 

update you periodically on the progress of this initiative.  Please contact me at 734-1250 or 

Evan Raleigh at 397-7701 if you would like more information or have any questions. 

 

 

-104-

G-5.      DRAFT



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: August 16, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: 
Meridith Martin, Assistant to the City Manager 

Ed McNeal, Marketing and Communications Director 

Council Action Requested: 

Consideration of a resolution to recognize women leaders in city government with a custom 

display on the first floor of city hall, and to install Mayor Joines’ portrait and plaque in the Hall 

of Mayors. 

Summary of Information:  

 

Approval of the resolution authorizes the city manager to develop and install a display honoring 

women who have been elected to city council and women staff members who have risen to the 

level of department head. 

 

Approval also authorizes the city manager to install a portrait and an accompanying plaque of 

Mayor Allen Joines in City Hall’s Hall of Mayors. The item was not requested by the Mayor, 

however, it is seen as fitting by City Manager Lee Garrity that the Mayor’s portrait be installed. 

All mayors are honored with a portrait in the Hall of Mayors. Mayor Joines became the city’s 

longest serving mayor when he was sworn in at the start of his fourth term in December of 

2013.  

 

 

 

Committee Action: 
 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

 

-105-

C-1.      DRAFT



 

-106-



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION OF A DISPLAY 

RECOGNIZING CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM GOVERNMENT WOMEN LEADERS, 

AND INSTALLATION OF THE PORTRAIT OF MAYOR ALLEN JOINES. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the first woman elected to the city of Winston-Salem Board of Alderman  

was Ernestine Wilson from the South ward in 1971, and since then ten other women have been 

elected to office; and  

 WHEREAS, Nancy Wolfe became the first woman department head when she was hired 

to oversee the city of Winston-Salem’s Public Relations Department in 1969, and since then, 29 

women have been hired as department heads; and  

 WHEREAS, Mayor Allen Joines, upon being sworn in for his fourth term in 2013, 

became the longest serving mayor in the history of Winston-Salem. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Council authorize 

the  City Manager, or designee to approve a custom display featuring women who have been 

elected to city council and women who have risen to the level of department head; and to install 

the display on the main level of City Hall. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the portrait of Mayor Allen Joines and a plaque 

acknowledging his accomplishments be installed in the Hall of Mayors on the first floor of City 

Hall. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-107-

C-1.      DRAFT



 

-108-



CITY STAFF DEPARTMENT HEADS

Winston-Salem City Government
WOMEN LEADERS

1971

2001

1989

1994
1999

The �rst female alderman, 
and Mayor Pro Tempore, 
Ernestine Wilson, was sworn 
in on December 8, 1971.

Vivian H. Burke began her sixth consecutive 
term in the Northeast Ward, becoming the 
longest serving council member in city 
history. It also marked her third term as 
Mayor Pro Tempore, making her the longest 
serving in city history.

1977
Virginia Newell and Vivian H. 
Burke are elected and 
become the �rst female 
African-American aldermen.

Martha Wood is elected 
as Winston-Salem’s �rst 
female mayor.

Carmen D. Caruth, an assistant to 
the public works director, was 
named assistant city manager on 
November 28. She was the �rst 
female and third African-American 
to hold the position. 
She became the director of the 
Human Resources Department 
in 2010.

Linda Davis was named �rst female police 
chief in North Carolina. She had joined the 
Police Department in 1966 as a secretary for 
then Major Tom Surratt. Eighteen months later, 
she transferred to the patrol division and 
completed the police basic training school. 

2008
Angela Carmon is named 
City Attorney in 2008, and 
becomes the �rst female to 
serve in that capacity.

ELECTED OFFICIALS

Joycelyn V. Johnson
1993 - 2009
East Ward

Earnestine Wilson
1971 - 1985
South Ward

Vivian H. Burke
1977 - present

Northeast Ward

Virginia K. Newell
1977 - 1993
East Ward

Marilyn S. (Lynn) Harpe
1981 - 1997

Southwest Ward

Martha S. Wood
1981 - 1989  Northwest Ward

1989 - 1992  Mayor

Nancy T. Pleasants
1989 - 1997

Northwest Ward

Wanda Merschel
1993 - 2003

Northwest Ward

Molly Leight
2005 - 2016
South Ward

Evelyn A. Terry
2005 - 2009

Southeast Ward

Denise D. Adams
2009 - present

North Ward

1969
The �rst female department 
head, Nancy Wolfe, O�ce of 
Public Relations.

Wanda Allen-Abraha
Human Relations Director

Denise Bell
Chief Financial O�cer

Martha Jo Campbell
Workforce Development Director

Florence Creque
Community Development Director

Angela Carmon
City Attorney

Carmen Caruth
Assistant City Manager

Carrie Collins
Marketing and Communications Director 

Linda Davis
Police Chief

Shantell Davis
City Link Director

Courtney Driver
Utilities Director

Dorothy Fentress
Emergency Management Director

Melissa Hasty-Taylor
Human Resources Director 

Sue Hyde
Streets Director

Linda Jackson-Barnes
Mayor’s O�ce

Barbara Johnson
Public Information Director

Melanie Johnson
City Secretary

Ann Jones
Budget Director

Deronda Kee Lucas
Community Assistance 
Liaison Director

Kathy McKenzie-Mitiku
Internal Auditing Director

Monica Lett
Housing and Development Director

Marie Matthews
City Secretary

Becky McBride
Sanitation Director

Toneq McCullough
Department of Transportation Director

Pat Norris
Police Chief

Martha Paige
Assistant City Manager

Renée Phillips
City Secretary

Addie Robbins
City Link Director

Lisa Saunders
Chief Financial O�cer 

Nancy Wolfe
Public Relations Director

-109-

C
-1.      D

R
A

FT



 

-110-



 

 

 

City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: August 27, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Derwick L. Paige, Assistant City Manager 

Council Action Requested: 

City Council, acting in its redevelopment and municipal capacities, holds a public hearing and 

considers an amendment to the Brookwood Redevelopment Plan. 

Summary of Information:  

In February 2001, City Council, acting in its redevelopment capacity, adopted the Brookwood 

Redevelopment Plan. This plan encompasses an area generally bounded by Bowen Boulevard 

Branch and Fairchild Drive on the north, 29
th

 Street and 26
th

 Street on the south, Liberty Street 

on the west, and Bowen Boulevard Branch, Fairchild Hills Drive, and LaDeara Crest Apartments 

on the east. The plan approved acquiring and clearing 155 parcels on approximately 75 acres, for 

the development of the Brookwood Business Park.   

 

While development has been slower than anticipated, the park currently has two tenants, the 

Winston-Salem Police Department/Forsyth County Sheriff’s Office joint indoor shooting range 

and Carolina Tissue Collaborative (d.b.a., GLAS) recently closed on its purchase of the spec 

building (as authorized by City Council in May 2016).   

 

Because development has been slower than anticipated, GLAS has requested that the City amend 

the Brookwood Redevelopment Plan to extend the term of the plan from January 1, 2020 until 

January 1, 2037 to protect both the City’s and its investment. The extension of these terms would 

ensure that the business park continues to be developed as a light industrial/corporate office 

space with standards for quality development and construction (attached). 

 

Staff supports this request and recommends adoption of the attached resolution. In accordance 

with the Brookwood Redevelopment Plan, the plan may be modified, changed or amended at any 

time by the City Council. North Carolina General Statutes require City Council, acting in its 

redevelopment capacity, to hold a public hearing on the plan before consideration of its approval.    

Per N.C.G.S, the advertisement for public hearing was published on August 24 and 31, 2016. In 

addition, the advertisement was published in the Winston-Salem Chronicle on August 25 and 

September 18, 2001. 

  

Committee Action: 
 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

  

-111-

C-2.      DRAFT



 

-112-



RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL, ACTING IN ITS 

REDEVELOPMENT CAPACITY, TO MODIFY THE BROOKWOOD 

REDEVELOPMENT PLAN 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Winston-Salem adopted the Brookwood Redevelopment Plan 

on February 5, 2001; and  

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Brookwood Redevelopment Plan, the plan may be 

modified, changed or amended at any time by the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, a request has been received from Carolina Tissue Collaborative (d.b.a., 

GLAS) to extend the terms of the redevelopment plan from January 1, 2020 until January 1, 

2037 to protect both the City’s and its investment; and  

WHEREAS, staff supports the extension of these terms to ensure that the business park 

continues to be developed as a light industrial/corporate office space with standards for quality 

development and construction and the necessary consents have been received from the owners. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council of the 

City of Winston-Salem, acting in its redevelopment capacity, accepts the recommendation of 

staff and the Community Development/Housing/General Government Committee to extend the 

terms of the Brookwood Redevelopment Plan until January 1, 2037.  

 

-113-

C-2.      DRAFT



 

-114-



 

Brookwood Redevelopment Plan  

Design Guidelines 

 

1. Safe transportation access should be provided to the site and should include access to 

Fairchild Road. Establishing Fairchild Road which has a signalized intersection and is a safer 

distance from the US 52 ramp than the 30
th

 Street access as the primary access to the 

industrial park is strongly encouraged. Direct vehicular access to the site from 29
th

 Street is 

discouraged. 

 

2. Pedestrian access should be provided to and throughout the industrial park. Sidewalks should 

connect the park to Liberty Street, Fairchild Drive, and to the residential uses to the south and 

west of the site. A sidewalk should be maintained or provided on the southwestern perimeter 

of the site, along Woodland Avenue, 29
th

 Street, and Claremont Avenue. Within the 

industrial park, sidewalks should be constructed on any main road into and within the project 

and on any interior road serving three (3) or more businesses. Individual development sites 

should provide for safe pedestrian access from roads and parking areas. Where new 

sidewalks are installed on streets, a minimum three foot wide planting area should be 

provided between the curb and the sidewalk. 

 

3. On-site transit access should be incorporated into the development plan. Transit access 

should be designed in consultation with the Winston-Salem Transit Authority and will allow 

for the establishment of bus routes through the industrial park at such time as ridership 

dictates.   

 

4. Buildings, parking, loading and storage areas should be screened from the adjacent 

residential areas. A substantial vegetative buffer, potentially incorporating a berm, should be 

provided along the southwestern, southern and southeastern boundary of the industrial park.  

Activities which can have a negative impact on adjacent uses, such as loading docks and 

storage areas, should be oriented away from residential uses. No on-site lighting should 

impact adjacent residential uses. 

 

5. Fencing or other measures provided to secure the industrial park or individual uses in the 

park should not create a fortress image from adjacent residential areas. If fencing is deemed 

necessary, decorative fencing is encouraged. Adjacent to residential areas, the required 

vegetative screening should be installed on the outside of fencing. Razor wire and similar 

materials should be prohibited where visible from roads and residential uses.  

 

6. A comprehensive landscape plan should be developed for the industrial park. The plan 

should include trees along all streets and coordinated landscape buffer plantings. 

 

7. The developer should establish restrictive covenants to assure compliance with recommended 

design standards and to establish other site and architectural design standards for all 

development in the park. The covenants could address areas including building materials, site 

design, screening, fencing, landscaping, landscaping maintenance and signage. 

 

 

 

-115-

C-2.      DRAFT



 

-116-



-117-

C-2.      DRAFT



 

-118-



 
 

City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: August 27, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Derwick L. Paige, Assistant City Manager 

Council Action Requested: 
 

Approve resolution authorizing a land lease at Kimberley Park to Goler Community 
Development Corporation. 

Summary of Information:  
 
At the August 15, 2016 City Council meeting, an item was approved  authorizing a land lease at 
Kimberley Park to Goler Community Development Corporation for the development of a  
hydroponics/aquaponics job training facility. The authority to lease the property is granted to the 
City by NCGS 160A-272, 266, and 279 (2014), which allows the City to lease real property for 
terms greater than 10 years by following the procedures for private negotiation and sale of real 
property to entities carrying out a public purpose.  
 
Per N.C.G.S 160A-272, property may be rented or leased only pursuant to a resolution of the 
Council authorizing the execution of the lease or rental agreement adopted at a regular Council 
meeting upon 30 days' public notice. 
 
The intent of the City Council to lease this property to Goler was advertised on August 20, 2016 
which was at least 30 days prior to the September 19, 2016 City Council meeting. The site of 
approximately three acres is in the southwest corner of Kimberley Park near the intersection of 
Northwest Crawford Place and Pittsburgh Avenue. The resolution authorizes the City to enter 
into a 25-year lease with Goler for the project described above. The lease could be renewed for 
up to three 25-year extensions based upon the approval of the City Council. In consideration for 
the covenants and restrictions placed within the lease agreement requiring the use of the property 
for a public purpose, the lease rate will be $1 per year. 

Committee Action: 
 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

  

-119-

C-3.      DRAFT



 

-120-



 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A LAND LEASE AT KIMBERLEY PARK TO GOLER 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION TO DEVELOP A 

HYDROPONICS/AQUAPONICS JOB TRAINING FACILITY 

 
 WHEREAS, Goler Community Development Corporation is a 501(c)3 organization that 

specializes in urban real estate, economic, entrepreneurship and employment development, and 

quality of life initiatives for families throughout Winston-Salem; and  

WHEREAS, Goler is interested in developing a hydroponics/aquaponics job training 

facility to help train hard to place individuals as well as provide fresh fruits and vegetables to a 

food desert in the community; and  

WHEREAS, Goler has identified a site of approximately three acres on the southwest 

corner of Kimberley Park near the intersection of Northwest Crawford Place and Pittsburgh 

Avenue that meets their needs and is requesting a 25-year lease with up to three 25-year 

extensions to utilize a portion of Kimberley Park for the project; and  

WHEREAS, since this is a long-term lease to a non-profit organization, it would follow 

the same procedures as the sale of land pursuant to N.C.G.S. 160A-272 and follow the 

requirements of N.C.G.S. 160A-279 for the sale of property to an entity carrying out a public 

purpose; and  

WHEREAS, per City guidelines, a public hearing was held by the Recreation and Parks 

Commission on July 5, 2016 and the City-City Planning Board on July 13, 2016 and both boards 

recommended approval of the lease; and  

WHEREAS, the proposed lease would also authorize Goler to sub-lease up to 50% of 

the property to other non-profit organizations for other public uses that assist the community 

with employment and/or food insecurity issues; and  

   

-121-

C-3.      DRAFT



 

WHEREAS, given the public benefits that this project will provide to the community, 

the City of Winston-Salem is interested in assisting Goler.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council of the 

City of Winston-Salem, upon the recommendation of the Finance Committee and upon at least 

30 days’ public notice per N.C.G.S. 160A-272, hereby authorizes a 25-year land lease with up to 

three 25-year extensions, upon the approval of the Mayor and City Council, to Goler Community 

Development Corporation for a site of approximately three acres, subject to final survey, on the 

southwest corner of Kimberley Park near the intersection of Northwest Crawford Place and 

Pittsburgh Avenue for a lease rate of $1 per year. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Goler is authorized to sub-lease up to 50% of the 

property to other non-profit organizations for other public uses that assist the community with 

employment and/or food insecurity issues for low and moderate income individuals. 

 

-122-

C-3.      DRAFT



 
 

 
 

TO:  Community Development/Housing/ General Government 
Committee  

FROM: Angela I. Carmon, City Attorney 

DATE: August 30, 2016 

SUBJECT: Proposed demolition of  305 Forest Hill Avenue (Owners listed as 
Douglas and Joy Wilson) 

CC: Lee Garrity, City Manager 
 

At the August Community Development/Housing/General Government 
Committee  (“General Government”) meeting discussion ensued following a presentation 
by Dan Beam, who indicated that he purchased the subject property through a foreclosure 
sale and that he anticipated receiving the executed commissioner’s deed in the near 
future. Mr. Beam also mentioned a 120 day limitation on his ability to make repairs to the 
subject property. Legal staff was asked to confirm the status of the subject property. 

 
On August 4, 2016, a commissioner’s deed was executed and subsequently filed 

in the Forsyth County Register of Deeds Office transferring title of the subject property 
from Douglas and Joy Wilson to The Brotherhood Homeless Coalition, LLC (“BHC”). 
Mr. Beam is associated with BHC. The deed contains a 120 day right of redemption by 
the United States government pursuant to 26 U.S.C. Section 7425 and 28 U.S.C. Section 
2410. This section applies when the United State government has a lien such as a 
mortgage or other lien on property and the United States government is not named as a 
party to the action.  

 
During the course of this 120 day period, the United States government has the 

opportunity to acquire the property, if such is desired, and pay the purchaser the amount 
paid at the sale, which in case was $11,500 (plus fees) plus interest at 6% per annum 
from the date of such sale and the amount (if any) equal to the excess of (a) the expenses 
necessarily incurred in connection with such property, over (b) the income from such 
property plus (to the extent such property is used by the purchaser) a reasonable rental 
value of such property. 

 
Mr. Beam and BHC are concerned about undertaking significant repairs during 

this redemption period given the chance that all funds expended might not be recovered if 
the right of redemption is exercised by the United States government. In light of such, the 
BHC should be afforded the opportunity to close up the property and address, in a 
reasonable manner, exterior health and safety items until the expiration of the 120 day 
redemption period which should occur on or about December 3, 2016.  The General 
Government Committee can hold the item in Committee until the expiration of said time 
period or move the item forward to City Council with a recommendation that the 
effective date of the ordinance be delayed until a date after the expiration of the 
redemption period (December 19, 2016).  

 
    Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to let me know.  

-123-

C-4.      DRAFT



 

-124-



-125-

C-4.      DRAFT



-126-

C-4.      DRAFT



-127-

C-4.      DRAFT



-128-

C-4.      DRAFT



 

City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: August 25, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Derwick L. Paige, Assistant City Manager 

Council Action Requested: 

 
Adopt Resolution Supporting the Expansion of the Piedmont Triad International Airport. 

Summary of Information:  
 
The Piedmont Triad Airport Authority is seeking support of expansion efforts at the Piedmont 
Triad International Airport (PTI) from city and county governments across the region. The 
attached non-binding resolution acknowledges the City’s support of the expansion efforts at PTI 
and recognizes PTI as serving an important economic role for the region.    
 
Based upon current data, PTI currently employs 5,000 people from across the region with 
approximately 10% of those individuals living in Winston-Salem. The average wage for these 
employees is $60,000-$65,000 annually.  
 
Approval of the attached resolution does not bind the City to any type of financial commitment, 
but is an effort to help promote and recognize the contributions of PTI.   

Committee Action: 
 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

-129-

C-5.      DRAFT



 

-130-



RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE EXPANSION OF THE 

PIEDMONT TRIAD INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

 

 WHEREAS, the Piedmont Triad International Airport ("PTI") is located at the center of 

the Piedmont Triad Region and serves all of the communities within the region, including the 

City of Winston-Salem; and 

 WHEREAS, in recognition of the vital role played by PTI in the regional economy, the 

North Carolina General Assembly has authorized the City of Winston-Salem to appoint one of 

the members of the Piedmont Triad Airport Authority, which owns and operates PTI; and 

 WHEREAS, in addition to serving the aviation needs of this community, PTI has also 

provided sites with airfield access for aviation and aerospace companies to construct and operate 

their facilities; and 

 WHEREAS, the Airport Authority has already developed a cluster of aviation and 

aerospace facilities at PTI, which provide high-paying jobs and career opportunities for several 

thousand, including aerospace engineers, designers, aircraft mechanics and other skilled 

personnel; and 

 WHEREAS, the Airport Authority's Master Plan calls for the increased development of 

such facilities using PTI's existing airfield infrastructure and new infrastructure that the Airport 

Authority is currently putting into place at PTI; and 

 WHEREAS, PTI's on-going development will yield a high rate of return by encouraging 

the expansion of existing facilities and the attraction of new companies to PTI, which will enable 

PTI to become a major center for the aviation and aerospace industry, a growing source of well-

paying jobs and badly-needed employment and a catalyst for economic growth throughout the 

Piedmont Triad.   

-131-

C-5.      DRAFT



 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council of the 

City of Winston-Salem recognize the role of PTI as this region's primary airport and as a source 

of economic growth for the entire area; and 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Winston-Salem hereby express support for development of new airfield infrastructure and 

aviation sites at PTI, and encourage other jurisdictions to support that development for the 

common benefit and future growth of the entire Piedmont Triad Region.  

 

-132-

C-5.      DRAFT



Please see Finance C-12 for printed material on this item. 

-133-

C-6.      DRAFT



 

-134-



SUMMARY OF MINUTES 
 

 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT/HOUSING/GENERAL GOVERNMENT 
COMMITTEE 

 
4:32 p.m., Tuesday, August 9, 2016 

 
COMMITTEE ROOM 

 
Room 239, City Hall 

__________________________________________ 
 
 COMMITTEE MEMBERS: Council Member Molly Leight, Chair 
     Council Member Jeff MacIntosh, Vice Chair 
     Council Member Denise D. Adams 
     Council Member Dan Besse 
 
 OTHERS PRESENT:  Council Member Derwin L. Montgomery 
 
Chair Leight called the meeting to order and stated without objection, the Committee would first 
consider the Consent Agenda. Council Member MacIntosh pulled Item C-2(a) for discussion and 
Chair Leight pulled Items C-2(e), C-4(c), C-4(f) and C-4(h) for discussion. 
 
Council Member Adams made a motion to approve the balance of the Consent Agenda. The 
motion was duly seconded by Council Member MacIntosh and carried unanimously. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
C-1. CONSIDERATION OF ORDINANCES RESCINDING AN ORDINANCE ORDERING 

THE DEMOLITION OF A DWELLING: 
 

a. C.W. Myers Trading Post, Inc.   1915 E. 26th Street 
 

b. Salem View Property Management, LLC  4309 Erie Drive 
 

C-3. ORDINANCE ORDERING THE DEMOLITION AND REMOVAL OF A 
STRUCTURE PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 10, ARTICLE V, SECTION 10-2013(f)(2) 
OF THE CITY CODE OF THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM: [Repairs more than 50% 
of value of structure (>50) six months]. 

 
a. Marianne Dehart     0 Circle Drive 

Accessory Building 
 

b. Rufino and Lucia Santa Maria   2227 Tryon Street 
 
 
 

-135-

C-7.      DRAFT



AGENDA August 9, 2016 Page 2 
 
 
C-2. CONSIDERATION OF ORDINANCES RESCINDING AN ORDINANCE ORDERING  
 DEMOLITION OF A DWELLING: 
 

c.     Zachariah Richardson, Heirs    117 E. 24th Street 
 
 d.     Priscilla A. Thornton Williams    664 Mt. Vernon Avenue 
 
 f.      Donald Lindsay Snyder Jr.   217 S. Green Street 
 

a.   Patsy Ann Cason     1025 Louise Road 
 
Ms. Stephanie Stimpson, Code Enforcement Senior Officer, gave the report on this item. 
 
In response to Council Member MacIntosh, Ms. Stimpson stated this property exists currently as 
a single-family property only, and this building has lost its non-conforming rights. 
 
Council Member MacIntosh made a motion to approve this item. The motion was duly seconded 
by Council Member Adams and was carried unanimously. 
 

e. Douglas B. and Joy C. Wilson    305 Forest Hill Avenue 
 
Mrs. Stimpson gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Mr. Dan Beam, P.O. Box 288, Advance, North Carolina, owner of the property stated, he has 
been checking on the property periodically. He also stated he currently does not have the deed 
and he purchased the property for $12,000. There is a 120-day moratorium from the Federal 
Government on the property and at this time he is not allowed to make any repairs.  
 
Council Member Adams requested a tax foreclosure value of the property from the City 
Attorney. And that Mr. Beam be given the allotted time to get repairs done.  
 
It was a consensus of the Committee to hold this item; for more information for September 
 

b. Patsy Ann Cason      1025 Louise Road 
 

Mrs. Stimpson gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Ms. Rasheeda Razzak, 1010 Charles Street, Winston-Salem, North Carolina stated, she is a 
neighbor of this property and the house has become a junk yard site. Her house has been broken 
into at least five times and there is suspicious behavior around the house frequently. She 
requested the property be demolished. 
 
Council Member Burke made a motion to approve this item. The motion was duly seconded by 
Council Member Adams and carried unanimously. 
 

-136-

C-7.      DRAFT



AGENDA August 9, 2016 Page 3 
 
C-5. APPROVAL OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT/HOUSING/GENERAL 

GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE SUMMARY OF MINUTES – June 14, 2016. 
 
C-4. ORDINANCE ORDERING THE COMMUNITY AND BUSINESS   DEVELOPMENT  
 DEPARTMENT   OF   THE    CITY OF    WINSTON-SALEM TO   REMOVE    OR 

DEMOLISH STRUCTURE UNFIT FOR HUMAN HABITATION AND, 
OTHERWISE, TO EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSE OF CHAPTER 10, ARTICLE V OF 
THE WINSTON-SALEM CITY CODE: [Repairs more than 65% of value of structure 
(>65)]. 

 
a. Doretha P. Edwards    618 E. 16th Street 

 
b.    Fate S. Jefferies, Heirs    919 Crowder Street 
 
a. Frances and Christine Blevins   3641 Yale Avenue  

Accessory Building 
 
Mrs. Stimpson gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Ms. Paige Thomas, 3620 Yale Avenue, Winston-Salem, North Carolina, neighbor of the property 
stated, she is speaking on behalf of Mrs. Blevins and stated her intentions are to hire someone to 
get her belongings out of the property before it is demolished. 
 
Council Member Adams made a motion to approve this item. The motion was duly seconded by 
Council Member MacIntosh and carried unanimously. 
 
 f. Jerry Allen Shepherd    2701 Patria Street 
 
Mrs. Stimpson gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Mr. Jerry Shepherd, P.O. Box 33, Walkertown, North Carolina stated, the building was 
understood to be just a structure. He is requesting more time for repairs. 
 
Council Member Adams made a motion to allot more time to operate under the demolition order 
and Council will review for further instruction on this item at the next Council meeting. The 
motion was duly seconded by Council Member MacIntosh and carried unanimously. 
 
 h. Ethel C. Sell     4001 Bethania Station Road 
 
Mrs. Stimpson gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Ethel Sell, 4001 Bethania Station Road, Winston-Salem, North Carolina, owner of the property 
stated, her intent is to repair the building. She has not made any repairs currently due to a lack of 
funding prior to today’s meeting. She now has funds and is requesting more time to do the 
repairs. 
 

-137-

C-7.      DRAFT



AGENDA August 9, 2016 Page 4 
 
Council Member Adams made a motion to approve this item. The motion was duly seconded by 
Council Member MacIntosh and carried unanimously. 
 

b.  Charlie Colter, Heir    1903 Maryland Avenue 
 
Mrs. Stimpson gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Charles Colter, heir to the property, stated his father is deceased so the affairs of the property 
have not been dealt with and his mother is elderly. He intends on keeping the property and is 
requesting more time for repairs. 
 
Council Member MacIntosh made a motion to approve this item. The motion was duly seconded 
by Council Member Adams and carried unanimously 
 
Mrs. Stimpson gave the staff report on this item. 
 

c. Linda Sandler     1235 Hattie Avenue 
 
 f.     Jerry Allen Shepherd    2701 Patria Street 
        Accessory Building 
 
C-5. APPROVAL OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT/HOUSING/GENERAL 

GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE SUMMARY OF MINUTES – June 14, 2016. 
 
GENERAL AGENDA 
 
G-1. RESOLUTION SUPPORTING PROJECT IMPACT, A COMMUNITY-LED 

INITIATIVE TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL OPERATING FUNDS TO WINSTON-
SALEM/FORSYTH COUNTY SCHOOLS TO ADDRESS CRITICAL STUDENT 
ACHIEVEMENT GAPS. 

 
Mr. Derwick Paige, Assistant City Manager, gave a staff presentation on this item. 
 
Council Member Adams requested a more detailed action plan. 
 
Council Member MacIntosh made a motion to approve this item. The motion was duly seconded 
by Council Member Adams and carried unanimously. 
 
G-2. ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 2 OF THE CITY CODE ENTITLED 

“ADMINISTRATION” – Piedmont Triad Airport Authority. 
 
Ms. Angela Carmon, City Attorney gave the staff presentation on this item. 
 
Council Member Adams made a motion to approve this item. The motion was duly seconded by 
Council Member MacIntosh and carried unanimously. 
 

-138-

C-7.      DRAFT



AGENDA August 9, 2016 Page 5 
 
G-4. CONSIDERATION OF AN ITEM RELATED TO THE ALLOCATION OF 

ADDITIONAL FUNDS FOR THE PATTERSON/GLENN AREA: 
 

a. RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ALLOCATION OF ADDITIONAL REVITILIZING 
URBAN COMMERCIAL AREAS (RUCA) III MATCHING FUNDS FOR THE 
PATTERSON/GLENN AREA (NORTHEAST WARD). 

 
b. ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY 

OF WINSTON-SALEM, FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2016-2107. 
 

Council Member Adams made a motion to approve this item and reference to G-5 from the 
Finance Committee. The motion was duly seconded by Council Member MacIntosh and carried 
unanimously. 
 
G-3. ORDINANCE REVISING CHAPTER B OF THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 

ORDINANCES TO AMEND REGULATIONS FOR ACCESSORY DWELLINGS – 
UDO-267 – Proposal of the City-County Planning and Development Services Staff 
[Recommended by Planning Board.] 

 
Council Member Leight requested a drawing from the Planning Board of a 1,000 square foot 
house and the placement of the accessory dwelling. 
 
Council Member Besse requested a total number of permits issued for structure dwellings. 
 
Council Member MacIntosh requested an alternative to the 1,000 square foot house to have an 
accessory dwelling. 
 
Chair Leight requested Ms. Carmon to get information with regards to legal ramifications for this 
item by the September meeting. 
 
Council Member Adams requested information from the Raleigh Housing Administration about 
the housing regulations. 
 
By consensus, the Committee agreed to bring this item back to its September meeting. 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  6:13 p.m. 

-139-

C-7.      DRAFT



 

-140-


	AGENDA
	GENERAL AGENDA
	G-1. PRESENTATION BY JOBS FOR THE FUTURE.

	[Presentation by Jobs for the Future.doc]
	[Presentation by Jobs for the Future - PowerPoint.pptx]

	G-2. BUILDING INTEGRATED COMMUNITIES-CITYWIDE ACTION PLAN.
	[W-S BIC Citywide Action Plan_08 29 16 hg edits complete.doc]

	G-3. REPORT ON COMPASSIONATE CITIES.
	[Memo to Mayor and Council re- Report on Compassionate Cities.doc]
	[Report on Compassionate Cities - Three-Year Anniversary Report.doc]
	[Report on Compassionate Cities - Program Feature - Restorative Justice.doc]
	[Report on Compassionate Cities - Compassion Corner Update.doc]
	[Report on Compassionate Cities - City with Dwellings Report.pdf]

	G-4. HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION ANNUAL REPORT
	[15-16 Annual Report Summary.docx]
	[15-16 Annual Report.docx]
	[Outreach2015-2016--HUD Audit.pdf]
	[Compassionate W-S Plan of Action.pdf]
	[StrategicActionPlan2014-2016-Draft.docx]

	G-5. INFORMATION ON TURN DEMONSTRATION HOMES CONCEPT
	[Memo - TURN Demonstration Homes Concept.docx]


	??CONSENT AGENDA
	C-1. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION OF A DISPLAY RECOGNIZING CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM GOVERNMENT WOMEN LEADERS, AND INSTALLATION OF THE PORTRAIT OF MAYOR ALLEN JOINES.
	[CARFWomenDisplay.docx]
	[ResolutionWomenDisplayFinal816.docx]
	[women display 104x52 copy.pdf]

	C-2. RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL, ACTING IN ITS REDEVELOPMENT CAPACITY, TO MODIFY THE BROOKWOOD REDEVELOPMENT PLAN. Public Hearing: September 19, 2016.
	[Amendment to the Brookwood Redevelopment Plan - CARF.doc]
	[Amendment to the Brookwood Redevelopment Plan - Resolution.doc]
	[Amendment to the Brookwood Redevelopment Plan - Design Guidelines.doc]
	[Amendment to the Brookwood Redevelopment Plan - Map.pdf]

	C-3. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A LAND LEASE AT KIMBERLEY PARK TO GOLER COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION TO DEVELOP A HYDROPONICS/ AQUAPONICS JOB TRAINING FACILITY.
	[Land Lease at Kimberley Park to Goler CDC - CARF.doc]
	[Land Lease at Kimberley Park to Goler CDC - Resolution.doc]

	C-4. PROPOSED DEMOLITION OF 305 FOREST HILL AVENUE (OWNERS LISTED AS DOUGLAS AND JOY WILSON). [Item continued from the August meeting of the Community Development/Housing/General Government Committee.]
	[Memo regarding 305 Forest Hill.doc]
	[305 Forest Hill Avenue.commissioners deed.pdf]

	C-5.  RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE EXPANSION OF THE PIEDMONT TRIAD INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT.
	[PTIA Expansion - CARF.doc]
	[PTIA Expansion - Resolution.doc]

	C-6. ORDINANCEDESIGNATING CERTAIN PROPERTY AS A HISTORIC LANDMARK -John L. And Emma J. Gilmer House, 605 West Cascade Avenue, Winston-Salem and a Portion of an Unopened Alley. Public Hearing October 17, 2016. 
	[Fly Sheet c-12.doc]

	C-7. APPROVAL OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT/HOUSING/GENERAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE SUMARY OF MINUTES - August 9, 2016. 
	[CDHGG Committee Minutes 8092016.pdf]



